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WELCOME TO OUR NEW BOARD MEMBERS! 

Oscar Blue 
Elected Member – Board of Governors 

Elected student representative for a term beginning August 1, 2020 and ending July 31, 2021. 

Lois Vader 
Appointed Member – Board of Governors 

Appointed by the Lieutenant Governor in Council for a term beginning July 31, 2020 and ending July 31, 
2021. 

Lois Vader tem skwish, a la tuwanq, a la lax’kwalaams father was Chief Henry Paull of Narrows Inlet and 
her mother was Ruby Paull (nee Spencer) from Port Simpson, B.C.  Previously Lois Vader was a 
Community Health Representative for Sechelt First Nation. 

Active in her community, Lois Vader was a Board Member for Sunshine Coast Steering Committee. She 
completed her Registered Nursing Assistant (RNA) Program from Fanshawe College and RNA 
Administration of Medication from Conestoga College. 

Sonny Wong 
Appointed Member – Board of Governors 

Appointed by the Lieutenant Governor in Council for a term beginning July 31, 2020 and ending July 31, 
2021.  

Sonny Wong is President and Creative Director of Hamazaki Wong Marketing Group. He is also Co-
founder and Producer of the Leo Awards. Previously he was Co-founder, Producer and Creative Director 
of Dinosaurs Unearthed. 

Active in his community, Sonny Wong is a Board Director of the Chinese Canadian Museum Society of 
B.C., Daryl Duke Foundation and the B.C. Entertainment Hall of Fame. He is a member of the Vancouver
Chinatown Legacy Stewardship, Pacific Council Member of OMNI Television and Founding Director of
Motion Pictures Arts and Sciences Foundation.

Previously Sonny Wong was Chair of the KCTS 9 Seattle, PBS Member Station and Founder and Chair of 
Board of Change Society. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce in Marketing from the University of British 
Columbia (UBC). 
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Excerpt from Appendix “C” of the Capilano University Board Governance Manual. 

 

OATH OF OFFICE 
 
The Board Chair shall administer to each Board Member, at the first Board meeting he or she attends, 
the following Oath of Office (and the Board Member shall swear, sign and date the Oath): 
 
 

“I, ______________, sincerely promise and swear (or affirm) that I will truly, 

faithfully and impartially, to the best of my ability, execute the duties and 

responsibilities of my position as a Member of the Board of Governors of 

Capilano University. I have read and agree to abide by the Capilano University 

Board Governance Manual, including the Board of Governor’s Bylaws and 

Code of Conduct and Ethics.” 

 

Signed_____________________  Date_______________________ 

 

______________________ 

(Please print name) 
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AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD 

Tuesday, September 29, 2020 
4:45 pm to 6:45 pm 

Via MS Teams 

We respectfully acknowledge the Lil'wat, Musqueam, Squamish, Sechelt and Tsleil-Waututh people on 
whose territories our campuses are located. 

AGENDA ITEM ACTION SCHEDULE TIME PAGE 

1. Introduction of New Board Members and Oath of Office – Cherian Itty, Chair Info 10 min Page 1 

2. Approval of Agenda – Cherian Itty, Chair

MOTION:  THAT the Board of Governors approves the agenda as presented. Approval 2 min Page 3 

(Disclaimer: The Consent Agenda includes the minutes of the Board’s previous meeting, Committee 
reports since the previous Board meeting, and correspondence. A Board member that approves of the 
Consent Agenda agrees to the information and its accuracy, without significant amendments or the 
need to separate a sub-schedule from the Consent Agenda for amendment and approval.)   

3. Consent Agenda – Cherian Itty, Chair

MOTION:  THAT the Board of Governors approves the following items on the
Consent Agenda:

Approval 3 min Page  4 

3.1. Minutes from the July 7, 2020 Board Meeting 3.1 

3.2. Board Committee Reports (These reports summarize the draft minutes of the 

Committee’s last meeting; any motions coming forward from the Committees are in 
the regular agenda.) 
3.2.1   Executive and Human Resource Committee 3.2.1 

3.2.2   Finance and Audit Committee 3.2.2 

3.2.3   Governance and Planning Committee 3.2.3 

3.2.4   Investment Management Committee 3.2.4 

3.3. Correspondence 3.3 

4. Place Holder: Item from the Consent Agenda Discussion 
[or Approval]

Verbal 3 min - 

5. Board Chair’s Report – Cherian Itty, Chair Info Verbal 10 min - 

6. Senate Reports

6.1.   Vice-Chair – Stephen Williams 

6.2.   Board Liaison – Duncan Brown 

Info 

Info 

Verbal 

Verbal 
5 min 

- 

7. President’s Report – Paul Dangerfield, President Info 7 10 min Page  24 

8. Governance and Planning Committee – Duncan Brown

8.1.  B.401 Sexual Violence and Misconduct Policy
MOTION: THAT the Board of Governors approves the revisions to B.401 Sexual 
Violence and Misconduct Policy as presented.

8.2 Governance and Planning Committee 2020-2021 Policy Priorities 
MOTION: THAT the Board of Governors approves the Governance and 
Planning Committee 2020-2021 Policy Priorities.

Approval 

Approval 

8.1 

8.2 

15 min 

10 min 

Page  48 

Page 118 

9. Finance and Audit Committee –  Patricia Heintzman

9.1 Fiscal 2020/21 Quarter 2 Forecast
MOTION: THAT the Board of Governors receives for information the Fiscal
2020/21 Quarter 2 Forecast.

9.2 Statement of Financial Information Fiscal 2019/20 
MOTION: THAT the Board of Governors approves the Statement of Financial 
Information for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2020. 

9.3 Capital Projects - Centre for Childhood Studies  
MOTION: THAT the Board of Governors approves the construction of the 
Centre for Childhood Studies. 

Approval 

Approval 

Approval 

9.1 

9.2 

9.3 

10 min 

10 min 

10 min 

Page 120 

Page 125 

Page 176 

10. Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) Update –
Toran Savjord

Info 11 10 min Page 178 

11. Business Arising Discussion 
[or Approval]

- - - 

12. Adjournment - - - - 
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MEETING  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD 

Tuesday, July 7, 2020 
4:45 pm to 6:45 pm  

Held remotely via Webex 

Board Staff 
Cherian Itty, Chair 
Duncan Brown, Vice Chair 
Paul Dangerfield, President 
Andrew Petrozzi 
Ash Amlani, Board Liaison  
Layne North 

Majid Raja 
Michael Fleming 
Mila Mattson 
Patricia Heintzman 
Rodger So 
Yuri Fulmer, Chancellor 

Jennifer Ingham, VP University Relations 
Pouyan Mahboubi, Dean, Faculty of Arts and Sciences 
Toran Savjord, VP Strategic Plan, Assess & Inst. Effect 
Mike Knudson, AVP Human Resources 
Lesley Cook, EA to the Board of Governors 

Guest 
Stephen Williams, Senate Vice Chair 

We respectfully acknowledge the Lil'wat, Musqueam, Squamish, Sechelt and Tsleil-Waututh people on 
whose territories our campuses are located. 

The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:46 p.m. 

1. Introduction of New Board Member and Oath of Office

The Board Chair welcomed new Chancellor Yuri Fulmer who took his oath of office during the
closed meeting of the Board, held directly before the open meeting, so that he was able to
participate as a Board member. The Board Chair also welcomed new student representative, Oscar
Blue, who joined the meeting as a gallery guest.

2. Approval of Agenda

It was moved (Yuri Fulmer), seconded by (Duncan Brown) and resolved;

THAT the agenda be approved as presented. 

3. Consent Agenda

It was moved (Duncan Brown) seconded by (Michael Fleming) resolved;

THAT the Board approve the following items on the consent agenda as presented: 

3.1. Minutes from the June 2, 2020 Board Meeting 

3.2. Board Committee Reports: 

3.2.1. Executive and Human Resources Committee 

3.2.2. Finance and Audit Committee 

3.2.3 Governance and Planning Committee 

Sch 3.1
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Minutes – July 7, 2020 
Regular Meeting of the Board 

 

 

2.3. Correspondence 

4. Place Holder (item from the Consent Agenda) 

No items were pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion. 

5. Board Chair Report 

The Board Chair gave a brief report. Yuri Fulmer was inducted as Capilano University’s fourth 
Chancellor at the June Convocation. The Lieutenant Governor conducted the oath and it was a 
very well thought out ceremony. Some of the Committees met since the June 2 Board meeting, 
with the Finance and Audit Committee working extra hard. 

The Board Chair was happy to report that Patricia Heintzman, Ash Amlani, and Rodger So have 
been reappointed to the Capilano University Board of Governors by the Ministry. They will 
continue to serve the Board’s Finance and Audit Committee. The Ministry also appointed two new 
members, Lois Vader and Sonny Wong, who we will meet in September. The Board of Governors 
also welcomes newly elected student representative Oscar Blue. 

6. Senate Reports 

The Senate Vice Chair provided the highlights from the June Senate meeting. Senate has created a 
Teaching and Learning Committee that replaces the Senate Instructional Technologies Advisory 
Committee. The Committee will be active throughout the summer and updates from this 
Committee will be included in the August Senate Report. Senate is looking at options for staggered 
Senate elections to minimize significant turnover. The Senate Academic Planning and Program 
Review Committee will create a new committee, the Academic Plan Advisory Committee to give 
input and advice on the upcoming academic plan. Summer faculty have been quick to move to a 
remote online framework. Senate approved temporary authority to the President’s Office to allow 
for flexibility concerning programing challenges resulting from the pandemic.  
 
The Vice Chair commented on the continuous good work of the Senate’s Curriculum Committee 
and the Senate. Together the Senate and the Committee work endlessly to tweak curriculum to 
ensure that it meets the University’s mission, objectives, policy, and education standards.   

7. President’s Report 

The President provided a report to the Board. Included in the agenda package is a letter from the 
Research Universities’ Council of BC, BC Colleges and the BC Association of Institutes and 
Universities to the Select Standing Committee on Finance and Government Services regarding the 
Committee’s 2021 budget consultation. Because of the COVID-19 pandemic, it is critical that we 
submit recommendations to the government as one united voice. The four priorities that we have 
identified are in support of students. For the first time across the sector, we are all coming 
together on common ground. It is great to see the collaboration across the sector. 

As Capilano University takes steps to prepare for the return of students to campus it is paramount 
that it is done in alignment with WorkSafe BC and the Go Forward Plan, which has Go-Forward 
Guidelines for the Post-Secondary Institutions (PSI) sector. The guidelines were developed through 
a multi-level collaborative format, together with multiple organizations, faculty and students, 
including one of CapU’s own, Grace Dupasquier. These guidelines will assist the Administration and 
staff to develop a set of unified guidelines for Capilano University, which will include information 
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Minutes – July 7, 2020 
Regular Meeting of the Board 

 

 

regarding class size, cafeteria protocol, student safety, and employee safety. Capilano University is 
getting ready to deliver high quality online programming. 

8. Finance and Audit Committee 

8.1 2020/21 Quarter 1 Operating and Capital Forecast 

The President gave an overview of recent discussions with the Ministry of Advanced Education, 
Skills and Training, which have been very positive. Assistant Deputy Minister Kevin Brewster joined 
the Finance and Audit Committee meeting on June 29 to provide an update to the Board’s 
Committee. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the expectation is that all PSIs will be in a deficit 
situation. The sector is expected to have a 10% to 40% decline in students, a significant portion will 
be international students. The exact deficit will not be known until after the Fall 2020 fee payment 
deadline; thus the Quarter 2 forecast report will be used by the Ministry to request a sector-wide 
deficit approval from the Ministry of Finance.   

It is paramount that the CapU Administration continues to do everything that it can possibly do to 
manage spending. This means pivoting to a new model to continue to provide a high level of 
service in an optimal, online learning environment, while mitigating expenses.  

The VP of Strategic Planning, Assessment and Institutional Effectiveness provided an overview of 
the forecast. The Administration and the Deans are working together on enrollment planning. A 
conservative forecast identifies that there will be a 26% decrease in enrollment compared to 
2019/20 Fiscal, which is the same across all provincial PSIs. This assessment implemented 
integrated planning and looks at how this decline will affect other areas in the forecast.  

The Director of Financial Services provided an overview of the Q1 forecast compared to the 
2020/21 original budget; which included a 19% decline in revenue and a 13% decline in expenses 
resulting in an $8.3 million forecasted deficit for Quarter 1.  The 2% increase in tuition fees 
approved by the Board of Governors for 2020-21 remains in the forecast for both international and 
domestic tuition which is in line with the other provincial PSIs. The new student fee, referred to on 
page 32 of the agenda package, was to commence in Fall 2020 term but has been changed to 
commence in Spring 2021.  Finance used the quarter 1 forecast exercise to make further 
improvements in budgeting which include splitting teaching and non-teaching faculty, analyzing 
benefits costs, and clean-up of Fund 20 restricted fund cost centres to budget based on a funding 
agreement or contract.  The Quarter 1 forecast also contains reductions in discretionary costs, 
additional investments to support remote educational and employee working models, and the 
removal of new investments added in the 2020/21 budget.  For these reasons, the Q1 forecast will 
be used internally as a budget.  

The Administration took questions from the Board of Governors. Incoming, returning, and 
international student enrolment numbers for spring and summer 2021 are all part of the forecast. 
Real enrolment numbers will be available in October after the fee payment deadline for Fall term. 
CapU has kept in touch with all of its international and domestic students by way of a survey.  CIE 
also phoned approximately 2,000 international students to confirm plans and discuss challenges 
they were facing. In terms of priority projects, the enterprise resource planning (ERP) system 
project is still a priority however; the focus for the time being is on teaching technology. 

Board members are encouraged to contact the President’s Office with any questions.   

It was moved (Rodger So), seconded by (Yuri Fulmer) and resolved; 
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Minutes – July 7, 2020 
Regular Meeting of the Board 

 

 

THAT the Board of Governors receives for information the 2020/21 Quarter 1 Operating and 
Capital Forecast. 

9. Institutional Accountability Plan and Report 

The Chair to the Governance and Planning Committee and gave an overview of the IAPR. 
Essentially this is the University’s report card to the Ministry. It looks at what the University has 
been doing and achieving with regard to the government’s sector-wide objectives and its annual 
mandate letter. This is the first time the Governance and Planning Committee as looked at this 
report. The VP of Strategic Planning, Assessment and Institutional Effectiveness and the 
Institutional Research Analyst presented a very well thought out and thorough presentation to the 
Committee. A significant amount of work has gone into the development and assembly of this 
document by the Administration and staff. The Committee reviewed and approved the report at 
their recent meeting on June 24 and are confident that it is ready for submission to the Ministry. 

The VP of Strategic Planning, Assessment and Institutional Effectiveness added that CapU has a 
very specific set of performance indicators that are in the report as per the Ministry’s mandate 
letter, which they send once or twice a year.  

It was moved (Duncan Brown), seconded by (Michael Fleming) and resolved; 

THAT the Board approve the Institutional Accountability Plan and Report (IAPR) for final 
submission. 

10. Executive and Human Resources Committee 

10.1 Policy B.503 Administrators – Conditions of Employment 

The Board Chair provided a brief background on process regarding the changes to the policy. The 
AVP of Human Resources added a brief overview of the changes as discussed in the cover report 
and redline version of the policy, included in the agenda package. 

It was moved (Michael Fleming), seconded by (Duncan Brown) and resolved; 

THAT the Board of Governors approve the revisions to B.503 Administrators - Conditions of 
Employment, as presented. 

11. NWCCU Update 

The VP of Strategic Planning, Assessment & Institutional Effectiveness gave an update on the 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) Seven Year Accreditation report and 
site visit. Every 7-years, PSIs with NWCCU accreditation undergo a performance review conducted 
by the NWCCU. The NWCCU includes the US and certain PSIs in B.C. such as Simon Fraser 
University and Thompson Rivers University. This accreditation allows for US students to get US 
Federal funding to attend CapU. Due to the pandemic, Capilano University’s site visit, October 19 
to 21, will be a virtual visit and will include meeting with the Board of Governors. The assessment 
includes 47 categories under two accreditation standards, Student Success and Institutional 
Mission and Effectiveness and Governance, Resources, and Capacity. The report deadline is August 
1, 2020.  
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Minutes – July 7, 2020 
Regular Meeting of the Board 

 

 

12. Business Arising 

The VP of University Relations announced that on June 4 Capilano University launched the CapU 
Cares Student Fund, raising $408,000+ in funds for students to date. This will support over 900 
new or returning students coming this fall.  

13. Adjournment 

The Regular Meeting of the Board adjourned at 6:16 pm. 
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 3.2.1:  Executive and Human Resources Committee Report 

PURPOSE:    Approval 
  Information 
  Discussion 

MEETING DATE:  September 29, 2020 

PRESENTER:  Cherian Itty, Executive and Human Resources Committee Chair 

PURPOSE 

To advise the Board of the In-Camera Executive and Human Resources Committee meeting that took 
place on August 25, 2020. 

BACKGROUND 

In this meeting the Executive and Human Resources Committee discussed the President’s annual 
performance and setting of annual work goals and real estate matters. 

RECOMMENDATION 

This report is for the Board’s information only. 
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 3.2.2:  FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

PURPOSE:    Approval 
  Information 
  Discussion 

MEETING DATE:  September 29, 2020 

PRESENTER:  Patricia Heintzman, Finance and Audit Committee Chair 

PURPOSE 

To advise the Board of Governors of the Finance and Audit Committee meetings that took place on 
August 27 and September 25, 2020. 

SUMMARY 

The Committee members who attended the August meeting were:  Patricia Heintzman, Rodger So, Ash 
Amlani and Duncan Brown.  The Committee approved the minutes of the June 29 Committee meeting 
and received a financial update.  The Committee determined that an orientation session is not needed. 

President Paul Dangerfield, Toran Savjord, VP of Strategic Planning, Assessment and Institutional 
Effectiveness, and Tally Bains, Director of Finance presented a summary of the financial results for Fiscal 
2020/21 Period 4 ending July 31, 2020 and took questions from the Committee members. The briefing 
note also included preliminary enrollment information for Fall term. 

The Committee members who attended the September meeting were: Patricia Heintzman, Rodger So, 
Ash Amlani, Duncan Brown and Sonny Wong. The Committee approved the minutes of the August 27 
Committee meeting and discussed the following items: 

 Fiscal 2020/21 Quarter 2 Forecast- Tally Bains, Director of Finance, presented a summary of the
financial results for Fiscal 2020/21 Quarter 2 Forecast.   The Committee passed a motion to
acknowledge that they received for information the Fiscal 2020/21 Quarter 2 Forecast.

 Statement of Financial Information Fiscal 2019/20 - The Committee reviewed and received
information on the Statement of Financial Information Fiscal 2019/20. The Committee passed a
motion recommending that the Board approve the Statement of Financial Information for the
Fiscal year ending March 31, 2020.  The motion is presented under item 9.1.

 Update on External Audit Services - The Committee received an update on the Office of the
Auditor General (OAG) audit plans and external audit service requirements.  The OAG has
shared their updated plan (see letter attached) which includes a second year of oversight for
Fiscal 2020/21 and no plans to direct audit.  KPMG has confirmed they are available to provide
audit services for Fiscal 2020/21 and to provide support to implement the new accounting
standard PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations.
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Finance and Audit Committee Report  Page 2 of 2 

September 29, 2020 
 

 

 Integrated Planning – Fiscal 2021/22 to 2023/24 - Toran Savjord, VP of Strategic Planning, 
Assessment and Institutional Effectiveness, provided a verbal update on the integrated planning 
process. 
 

 Capital Projects: 7a. Centre for Childhood Studies - Toran Savjord, VP of Strategic Planning, 
Assessment and Institutional Effectiveness,  provided an update regarding  the planning and 
construction of the Centre for Childhood Studies Building.  The Committee passed a motion 
recommending that the Board approve the construction of the Centre for Childhood Studies.  
The motion is presented under item 9.2. 
 

 Housing on Campus  - President Paul Dangerfield and Toran Savjord, VP of Strategic Planning, 
Assessment and Institutional Effectiveness, presented an update regarding Housing on Campus. 

RECOMMENDATION 

This is for the Board’s information only. 
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September 2, 2020 

VIA EMAIL 

Paul Dangerfield  

President and Vice-Chancellor 

Capilano University  

2055 Purcell Way 

North Vancouver, B.C.  V7J 3H5 

Dear Mr. Dangerfield: 

Re:  Appointment of auditors for government organizations and trust funds 

The Auditor General Act requires that each year, the Auditor General prepare a Financial 

Statement Audit Coverage Plan for the appointment of auditors for government organizations 

and trust funds for the following three fiscal years. On March 30, 2020 the Legislative 

Assembly’s Select Standing Committee on Public Accounts approved our latest plan for 

financial statement fiscal years ending in 2021, 2022 and 2023. Audit coverage plans are usually 

approved in the fall of each year, however, last year’s plan was unavoidably delayed to  

March 2020. The audit coverage plan may be viewed on our website at 

www.bcauditor.com/about-us/financial-statement-audit-coverage-plans . 

I am writing today to confirm the Auditor General’s audit plan in relation to Capilano University. 

The audit coverage for Capilano University approved in March 2020 is a change from the 

previous year’s audit coverage plan.  

Over the past year, we have been in contact with your organization to discuss our plan for the 

coming years. The latest audit coverage plan is a reflection of that verbal discussion. 

Whereas the previous plan was for the Auditor General to perform oversight procedures for the 

fiscal year ending March 31, 2020 and to become the auditor of Capilano University for the year 

ending March 31, 2021, the latest plan is for the Auditor General to perform oversight 

procedures in fiscal 2020 and 2021, and to have no involvement with Capilano University for the 

remainder of the plan, which ends in 2023.  

The financial statements of Capilano University will continue to be audited by an auditor 

appointed by the Board of Governors.  

By way of background, as auditor of the Government of the Province of British Columbia’s 

summary financial statements, the Auditor General must have sufficient knowledge about the 

organizations comprising the government reporting entity in order to meet professional 

standards. We acquire this knowledge by a combination of directly carrying out audit work in 

3.2.2
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Page 2 
September 2, 2020 
Paul Dangerfield  
 
 

 

some of these organizations and seeking reliance on the work of auditors of other government 

organizations. The balance between financial statement audit work done directly by the Auditor 

General and that done by other auditors is determined by the Financial Statement Audit 

Coverage Plan. As in prior years, the Auditor General will be relying on the work of the auditor 

of Capilano University. 

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 250-419-6141 or 

pbourne@bcauditor.com.  

 

Yours truly, 

 

 

 

Peter Bourne, CPA, CA, CIA 

Principal, Financial Audit 

 

CH/ah 

 

cc: Cherian Itty, Chair, Board of Governors 
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 3.2.3:  GOVERNANCE AND PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT 

PURPOSE:    Approval 
  Information 
  Discussion 

MEETING DATE:  September 29, 2020 

RESENTER:  Duncan Brown, Governance and Planning Committee Chair 

PURPOSE 

To advise the Board of the Governance and Planning Committee meetings held on September 1 and 15, 
2020. 

SUMMARY 

The members of the Governance and Planning Committee are: Duncan Brown (Chair), Andrew Petrozzi, 
Oscar Blue, Michael Fleming, and Mila Mattson.   

The Committee met on September 1, 2020 for the Committee Orientation.   

At the September 15th meeting, the Committee reviewed and discussed the following: 

1. 2020-2021 Committee Goals and Priorities

The Committee approved its 2020-2021Committee Goals and Priorities, which include: 

Governance 

 Reviewing Policy B. 101 – Vision, Values, Mission, Goals and Strategic Directions, in consultation
with Senate.

 Incorporating the Foundation into the Board Governance Manual.

 Developing a Board Member Handbook.

 Review the Board evaluation survey and process.

Policy 

 Complete review of 2019- 2020 policy review priorities

 Recommend 2020-2021 policy review priorities and review those policies

 Develop Delegation Policy

Planning (Strategic Oversight) 

 Review annual operational and capital plans and KPIs
 Review E2030 Strategic Plan implementation
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 Review Institutional Accountability Plan and Report 
 

2. 2020-2021 Committee Meeting Schedule 

The Committee approved the meeting schedule for 2020-2021. 

3. Policy Review 
 

B.401 Sexual Violence and Misconduct Policy 
 
University staff presented the background and rationale for the updates and revisions to B.401 Sexual 
Violence and Misconduct Policy and Procedures to the Committee.  The Committee members had an 
opportunity to ask questions and to provide feedback.  After review, discussion and feedback, the 
Committee approved a motion recommending that the Board at its September 29, 2020 meeting 
approve the updates and revisions to the policy, with the amendments made at the meeting.  
 
The policy, cover report and motion can be found later in the Board’s agenda package. 

 
4. Policy Review – 2019-2020 Priorities Update 

The Committee reviewed an update on the 2019-2020 policy priorities. 

5. Policy Review – 2020-2021 Priorities  

The Committee approved a motion to recommend to the Board the following policy priorities for 2020-
2021: 

 B.101 Vision, Values, Mission, Goals and Strategic Directions  

 B.104 Discontinuance of Programs or Courses  

 B.106 Program and Course Review and Approval  

 Memo 26 – First Nations Policy Statement  

 B.701 Student Code of Conduct Policy  

 B.511 Discrimination, Bullying and Harassment Policy  

 B.310 Protected Disclosure (Whistleblower) Policy  

 B.601 Copyright Policy  

 B.301 Naming of Buildings, Spaces & Programs/Guidelines for Recognition/Fundraising/Donors 
Etc. 

  B.305 System for Naming of Buildings 

 Development of a delegation policy 

The recommended policy review priorities cover report and motion can be found later in the Board’s 
agenda package. 

RECOMMENDATION 

This report is for the Board’s information only.   
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 3.2.4:  INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 

PURPOSE:    Approval 
  Information 
  Discussion 

MEETING DATE:  September  29, 2020 

PRESENTER:  Ash Amlani, Investment Management Committee Chair 

PURPOSE 

To provide the Board with a summary of the Investment Management Committee Orientation held 
September 1st and the small group meeting held on September 10th. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Investment Management Committee met for orientation on September 1st and went through a 
refresh of general overview and terms of reference for new members. A general discussion was had 
about the upcoming agenda items at the next meeting. 

On September 10th the committee met to review the investment returns for Q1. Tally Bains presented 
that Both the University and the Foundation portfolios saw a significant loss in market value in March as 
a result of the pandemic.  However, the market quickly recovered in April and we have been seeing a 
gradual gain in both portfolio’s each month. 

The committee was interested in adding the Real-estate fund to the foundations alternative asset mix 
and David Ayriss made a recommendation of 2.5%. It was noted that the universities portfolio had 
always been more conservative than the foundation’s and it was agreed that more diversification was 
needed for the university to be more aligned with the foundations portfolio. 

The group received a presentation from Investment Managers, Phillips, Hager and North (PH&N) 
detailing the opportunity with the real estate fund and had an opportunity to ask questions.  They 
concluded that with a long term goal of 5 to 7 years the fund could provide a total net return ranging 
from 6% to 8%. 

A foundation portfolio review was conducted after the investment managers left the meeting and a 
motion was passed for the Foundation to allocate 3% of the alternative asset class to the real estate 
fund. It was also brought to light that Bob McGill has retired and was acknowledged for his many years 
of supporting the foundation and the investment committee. 

RECOMMENDATION 

This report is for the Board’s information only. 
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BOARD REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 3.3: CORRESPONDENCE 

PURPOSE:    Approval 
  Information 
  Discussion 

MEETING DATE:  September  29, 2020 

PRESENTER:  Cherian Itty, Board Chair 

PURPOSE 

To inform the Board of correspondence received since the July 7, 2020 Board of Governors meeting. 

INFORMATION 

The Board of Governors received three letters. One letter is from Minister and Deputy Premier Carole 
James. The letter of August 31, 2020 is addressed to the Board Chair concerning the COVID-19 pandemic 
and a direction for a policy to freeze executive compensation for the 2020/2021 performance year.    

The second letter is from the Office of the Auditor General of BC.  The letter of September 2, 2020 is 
addressed to the President and Vice-Chancellor confirming the Auditor General’s audit plan in relation 
to Capilano University. 

The third letter is from the Capilano Students’ Union (CSU).  The letter of September 15, 2020 is 
addressed to the Board Chair concerning the CSU’s endorsement of the changes to the University Sexual 
Violence Policy (B. 401).  The letter expresses the CSU’s support for the revised Sexual Violence Policy 
that is being recommended to the Board of Governors for approval. 

RECOMMENDATION 

This report is for the Board’s information only. 
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Ministry of Finance        Office of the Minister  
    and Deputy Premier 

 

   

 Mailing Address:                                       Location: 

 PO Box 9048 Stn Prov Govt                    501 Belleville Street 

 Victoria BC  V8W 9E2                             Parliament Buildings, Victoria 

 Telephone: 250 387-3751                          website: 

 Facsimile:   250 387-5594                          www.gov.bc.ca/fin 

 

August 31, 2020 

394188 

SENT VIA EMAIL 

 

 

Dear Board Chair: 

 

As you know, the COVID-19 pandemic has challenged and changed our province, and the 

Government is doing everything it can to invest in people, businesses and communities to see 

them through the pandemic and build back better. 

 

At our July fiscal update, I provided new information about the impact the pandemic has had on 

the province’s fiscal plan, and on employment, consumer and business behaviour.  We are still 

dealing with a high level of uncertainty regarding the magnitude and duration of the economic 

decline caused by the pandemic.  

 

It is too soon to speculate on the length of time it will take to return to a scenario where our 

economy is back to pre-pandemic levels of activity.  We do know that many working people in 

our province have not faired as well as others.  That is why we have introduced amendments to 

the Economic Stabilization Act to ensure that we have the resources and flexibility we need to 

support British Columbians and businesses during the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the start 

of economic recovery.  We will all have to do our part, however, to assist in getting B.C. back 

into shape in the months ahead.  

 

As such, you can expect a comprehensive economic recovery plan in September and an initial 

review of the impact of relief measures taken so far.  Today, the Province’s Public Accounts for 

the 2019/20 fiscal year will be released.  Consistent with past practice, the annual executive 

compensation disclosure will be also part of that release.    

 

Additionally, I will announce a direction for a policy to freeze executive compensation for the 

2020/21 performance year.  Effective today, public sector employers currently subject to 

compensation plans under the Public Sector Employers Act will be required to amend their plans 

to indicate there will be no increases or adjustments paid to executive-level employees s for the 

2020/21 performance year.  

 

The amended plans must be submitted to the Public Sector Employers’ Council Secretariat by 

October 31, 2020 for approval.  In cases where executives are covered by individual contracts, 

Boards must acknowledge that no performance increases or adjustments will be actioned by 
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them for the 2020/21 performance year.  The executive compensation freeze policy applies to 

Crown agency CEOs, Vice Presidents, and comparable executive roles within your organization. 

 

I believe the leaders and key decision-makers of our public sector, those we depend on to ensure 

the smooth operation and provision of services to people, understand the challenges ahead and 

the important steps we need to take to support B.C.’s economic recovery.  In advance, I want to 

thank our public sector CEOs and executives for their exceptional leadership in these 

unprecedented times, and your continued efforts in supporting B.C.’s response to the pandemic.  

 

Sincerely, 

 
Carole James 

Minister and Deputy Premier 
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September 2, 2020 

 

VIA EMAIL 

 

Paul Dangerfield  

President and Vice-Chancellor 

Capilano University  

2055 Purcell Way 

North Vancouver, B.C.  V7J 3H5  

 

Dear Mr. Dangerfield: 

 

Re:  Appointment of auditors for government organizations and trust funds 

 

The Auditor General Act requires that each year, the Auditor General prepare a Financial 

Statement Audit Coverage Plan for the appointment of auditors for government organizations 

and trust funds for the following three fiscal years. On March 30, 2020 the Legislative 

Assembly’s Select Standing Committee on Public Accounts approved our latest plan for 

financial statement fiscal years ending in 2021, 2022 and 2023. Audit coverage plans are usually 

approved in the fall of each year, however, last year’s plan was unavoidably delayed to  

March 2020. The audit coverage plan may be viewed on our website at 

www.bcauditor.com/about-us/financial-statement-audit-coverage-plans . 

 

I am writing today to confirm the Auditor General’s audit plan in relation to Capilano University. 

The audit coverage for Capilano University approved in March 2020 is a change from the 

previous year’s audit coverage plan.  

 

Over the past year, we have been in contact with your organization to discuss our plan for the 

coming years. The latest audit coverage plan is a reflection of that verbal discussion. 

 

Whereas the previous plan was for the Auditor General to perform oversight procedures for the 

fiscal year ending March 31, 2020 and to become the auditor of Capilano University for the year 

ending March 31, 2021, the latest plan is for the Auditor General to perform oversight 

procedures in fiscal 2020 and 2021, and to have no involvement with Capilano University for the 

remainder of the plan, which ends in 2023.  

 

The financial statements of Capilano University will continue to be audited by an auditor 

appointed by the Board of Governors.  

 

By way of background, as auditor of the Government of the Province of British Columbia’s 

summary financial statements, the Auditor General must have sufficient knowledge about the 

organizations comprising the government reporting entity in order to meet professional 

standards. We acquire this knowledge by a combination of directly carrying out audit work in 
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September 2, 2020 
Paul Dangerfield  
 
 

 

some of these organizations and seeking reliance on the work of auditors of other government 

organizations. The balance between financial statement audit work done directly by the Auditor 

General and that done by other auditors is determined by the Financial Statement Audit 

Coverage Plan. As in prior years, the Auditor General will be relying on the work of the auditor 

of Capilano University. 

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 250-419-6141 or 

pbourne@bcauditor.com.  

 

Yours truly, 

 

 

 

Peter Bourne, CPA, CA, CIA 

Principal, Financial Audit 

 

CH/ah 

 

cc: Cherian Itty, Chair, Board of Governors 
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Maple 121 – 2055 Purcell Way 
North Vancouver, BC  V7J 3H5 

604.984.4969
604.984.4995 
www.csu.bc.ca

RECEPTION

FAX

WEB

September 15, 2020

Cherian Itty
Chair, Capilano University Board of Governors 
2055 Purcell Way
North Vancouver, BC    V7J 3H5

Re: Capilano Students’ Union Endorses Changes to Sexual Violence Policy

Dear Cherrian and board members,

I am writing on behalf of the Capilano Students’ Union to express our support for the revised Sexual Violence Policy 
that has been recommended to the board of governors for approval. We appreciate the extent to which students, and 
student leaders from the Capilano Students’ Union, were kept involved at every step of this policy’s review process, led 
by Ashley Bentley, student rights and responsibilities advisor.

This policy has undergone significant changes since its initial approval by the board of governors in 2017, and we be-
lieve that these changes are marked improvements. The volume of research into sexual violence in the post-secondary 
space, as well as advocacy and organizing around sexual violence prevention, has seen tremendous growth since the 
government’s introduction of the Sexual Violence and Misconduct Policy Act, and the university’s resulting policy work. 

We appreciate that the revised policy has been developed in consultation with members of our community who are 
disproportionately impacted by sexual violence, and have taken into account recommendations from experts in the 
field such as those from the Our Turn report by Students for Consent Culture, the Calls to Justice in the National Inquiry 
into Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women and Girls, and the Courage to Act report.

We appreciate the recognition of systemic and historical harm contributed by post-secondary institutions, and the in-
herent power imbalances within these institutions which have disproportionate impacts on the safety of students, and 
especially students with identities who may experience intersecting and multiple levels of discrimination.

Clearer language around responsibilities; a commitment to training and education for the university community; and 
changes to options for disclosures all indicate a trauma-informed, accessible, and survivor-centred approach to the revi-
sion of the Sexual Violence Policy and Sexual Violence Procedures.

This is so important.

For survivors, the barriers to reporting sexual violence are often seemingly insurmountable. It’s not just overcoming 
the trauma of experiencing violence that makes it difficult. The culture of minimizing and trivilizing sexual violence can 
create situations where survivors who do decide to disclose are dismissed, inappropriately questioned, or left in the 
dark about their options. The language in a sexual violence policy needs to be this explicit, so that survivors can feel 
certain that their safety — whatever that looks like for them — will be prioritized as they navigate an incredibly difficult 
process.

As an organization that represents populations who are disproportionately likely to experience sexual violence during 
their time at Capilano University — students, generally, and people aged 18 to 34 — the Capilano Students’ Union sup-
ports the revised Sexual Violence Policy and the Sexual Violence Procedures, and we encourage the board of governors 
to approve the revised policy and procedures as proposed in the board package. 

If you have any questions, or wish to discuss the draft policy and procedures with representatives of the Capilano 
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Students’ Union, we would be pleased to meet before the policy and procedures are considered or, at your request, to 
address the board of governors at your meeting of September 29.

Yours sincerely,
Emily Bridge
CSU President

CC: Paul Dangerfield, President & Vice-Chancellor, Capilano University
 Daniel Levangie, Associate Vice-President, Student Success, Capilano University
 Christopher Girodat, Executive Director, Capilano Students’ Union
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 PRESIDENT’S REPORT TO THE BOARD | 1 

PRESIDENT’S  REPORT TO THE BOARD
September 29, 2020 

P R E S I D E N T ’ S  O F F I C E

The start of the 2020 academic year was certainly different than any year prior, and not just because we have adapted the 

University to respond to COVID-19. New recruiting and admissions processes have resulted in year-over-year increases in 

domestic student enrolments, research funds were received for the first time from Mitacs, TD Bank’s Ready Commitment 

contributed $450K to the Indigenous Digital Accelerator and we received notice that our new Bachelor of Kinesiology was 

approved by the ministry.  

However, what has been truly remarkable has been the University’s ability to execute our COVID-19 resumption plan 

guided by facilities, IT Services (ITS) and the Centre for Teaching Excellence (CTE). Equally extraordinary has been the 

aptitude of employees and students to pivot to our new adapted model supported by initiatives such as a CapU Cares 

fundraising campaign for students, digital ambassadors in the classroom, a team of COVID-19 building leaders and a new 

well-being framework and action plan to strengthen student and employee resilience.  

A C A D E M I C  &  P R O V O S T

» Summer saw the highest enrolments to date in the May–August term to date, with courses adapted to primarily online

mode with substantive teaching and learning support through the CTE and enhanced service activity through ITS.

Significant planning activity and adaptations continued over the summer months in preparation for the Fall 2020 term

and in support of the overall academic continuity planning for the fall and beyond. The resumption plan for fall classes

utilized guidelines and directives from the Provincial Health Officer, WorkSafeBC and other policy guidelines and

requirements (e.g., post-secondary sector plan). Requirements for physical distancing, applicable screening protocols

and routine and frequent environmental cleaning were put in place along with communications to advise faculty and

students. While the University continued to work through the overall resumption plan, specific and focused planning

has been done at the course and program levels with substantive faculty leadership. The priority remains the safety of

employees and students while working toward high-quality learning experiences. Many areas including the faculties,

Registrar’s Office, CTE, Library, ITS, Office of Health and Safety (OHS) and campus planning collaborated closely to

prepare the fall schedule with four modes of course offerings: online, mixed mode (online and some in person) and in

person. Continued appreciation and gratitude is extended to those in faculties, academic leadership, and the many

academic units for their dedication, teamwork and resilience to take up the challenges that have been presented due

to the ongoing pandemic. Their focus has continued to be on academic quality and continuity, building-in additional

plans and activities to best support teaching and learning in adapted ways while keeping students’ experiences central.

» A town hall for faculty was held in late August, to provide updates and convene a space for questions on the

resumption plan and planning for the Spring term. The session was well attended and a video recording was posted on

Frontlines for wider access. A subsequent town hall will be held in the middle of the term to learn about faculty

experiences and share further updates, including information for the Spring 2021 term.
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» To deepen commitments associated with the Truth and Reconciliation Calls to Action, Calls for Justice with the 

Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women and Girls inquiry and the Okangan Charter, an Equity, Diversity and 

Inclusion Action Group (EDI AG), comprised of faculty, staff and students, was struck under the office of VP Academic 

& Provost. The EDI AG will provide input and guidance on processes and activities that will inform the development 

and/or expansion of EDI infrastructures and supports on campus. The goal of the group is to transform institutional 

structures and activities that have historically excluded or marginalized underrepresented populations and to develop 

an EDI recommendation document. Facilitated by the Canadian Centre for Equity and Diversity (CCDI), 

the action group will advise on EDI best practices across the spectrum of University activities, including: (1) policy and 

memberships, (2) well-being and accessibility, (3) student services, (4) curriculum and pedagogy, (5) hiring and 

evaluation practices, (6) training and education, and (7) dialogue, forums and communications. 

» Planning continues with the academic plan with a four-phased process and an Academic Plan Advisory Group (APAG), 

comprised of faculty, academic leadership, staff and students, has been struck to advise and contribute along with 

several other existing committees. The 2030 Academic Plan will emerge directly from the vision, purpose and values 

central to Envisioning 2030 with a goal that a final plan will be presented at Senate and the Board of Governors for 

approval in February 2021. 

» At the beginning of August, we welcomed Dennis Silvestrone who joined CapU as the dean, Faculty of Business & 

Professional Studies. 

F A C U L T Y  O F  A R T S  &  S C I E N C E S  

» Creative Writing at Capilano University is quickly adapting to the online setting by launching several new initiatives. 

Our Open Text Readings Series will bring acclaimed poets and novelists from all over the world to our students via 

Zoom, to read from their newly published books and to guide online workshops. Thanks to a Canada Council for the 

Arts grant, our campus-wide writing contest will award the best student creative writing with a $1000 prize. Finally, 

our 30-year-old student publication The Liar will be relaunched with a new website, featuring online publication and 

author interviews.  

» Active planning is underway for an innovative dual-credit program with a North Vancouver high school that creates, 

implements, researches and evaluates market-aligned, problem-based, technology-rich teaching and learning activities. 

It brings together students (as learners), educators (as mentors) and local organizations and community stakeholders 

(as authentic problem suppliers), and engages and involves them in a meaningful and sustainable partnership with a 

goal to pilot in summer 2021. 

» The Interdisciplinary Studies program is in the process of updating our MOU with Quest University to explore options 

for Quest students to transfer into CapU’s BA framework and the INTS program profile so that students in their third 

or fourth year could transfer their credits to complete a CapU BA with a major in interdisciplinary studies or complete 

their current degree by taking Capilano University courses. 

» A new partnership has been launched between the Howe Sound Biosphere Region Initiative and Capilano University 

involving the faculty, and the offices of Indigenous education and affairs and creative activity, research & scholarship. 

Many of those involved with this initiative have been linked to CapU via our EarthWorks initiative and many faculty at 

CapU have engaged in research and place-based learning coursework in Howe Sound for many years. The first 

milestone will be a successful proposal to be a UNESCO-recognized biosphere region. There is much work ahead for 

faculty across many disciplines and certainly engagement with the Squamish and Sechelt Nations, the regions’ 

businesses, professional associations and citizen-science groups will be essential scaffolding as we walk this 
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relationship forward. Our first dream is a cross-disciplinary field school offered in the Summer term involving the 

geography, biology, anthropology and the tourism and outdoor recreation departments. At this time, a small group of 

faculty are actively investigating sites and options for such a program. 

F A C U L T Y  O F  B U S I N E S S  &  P R O F E S S I O N A L  S T U D I E S  

» The Schools of Business and Communications and Academic Initiatives & Planning are developing a Minor in Business 

and Minior in Communications that would be open to students in non-business/communications degrees, improving 

options for students across the institution with a goal to launch the minors for Fall 2021.  

» The District of Squamish has formed an 11-member Economic Partner Forum as part of a new governance 

approach for economic development. The voluntary group, with Dean Dennis Silverstone participating for the 

University, will provide a collaborative framework to share expertise, knowledge and resources in an effort to fulfill on 

economic development strategies, plans and actions outlined in the District of Squamish 2019–2022 Strategic Plan. 

» By design, the School of Business dpartment orientation was quite different this year. In an effort to create a 

welcoming and comforting feel to the orientation, small online group orientation sessions were held with a maximum 

of 10 students, hosted by two faculty via Zoom. The sessions offered maximum engagement and interaction and 

provided a level of comfort to the online learning model. Out of the 264 new students entering the school this year, 

172 students participated in the new student orientation.  

» The School of Business has reached the one-year mark following its successful program review in Spring 2019. Of the 

13 goals within the action plan, the School of Business has completed five, including creating new special topic 

courses and increasing the computer skills content in the Bachelor of Business Administration. Over the next few 

months, some of the priorities that the school will be focusing on include finalizing the self-study report for 

Accreditation Council for Business Schools and Programs (ACBSP) accreditation, establishing block transfer 

agreements and building a focused plan for more Work Integrated Learning (WIL) within the curriculum.  

» Faculty Andrea Eby (business) has started with the Work-Integrated Learning (WIL) University project to support the 

School of Business curriculum initiative. The project begins with an audit of School of Business courses to assess WIL 

components, plus any courses being redesigned and relaunched with a WIL focus. 

» Enactus has maintained a busy schedule. Square One, a financial literacy project, won Opening Round runner-up at 

the Enactus National Competition 2020. The Enactus “U-belong Team” is hosting four webinar coffee chats for 

students to connect in disconnected times. The Enactus CapU Mobilizing Local Love in North Vancouver met up on 

campus in August (while practicing social distancing) to package mental wellness items for seniors in our community in 

partnership with United Way Lower Mainland's Local Love campaign. These bags included items that offer activities 

for seniors to do and items letting them know that we are thinking about them. 

» Faculty Laurie Prange's classes and several other School of Business faculty participated in five of the 12 projects with 

CityStudio North Vancouver. One project led to the development of “Parklets”—small seating areas or greenspaces 

that are integrated into city streetscapes—being developed all along Lonsdale Avenue this past summer. For details: 

https://citystudiocnv.com/business-professional-studies/  

» Faculty Mitra Kiamanesh (business) was recognized as a regional recipient of the 2020 ACBSP Teaching Excellence 

Award. The Accreditation Council for Business Schools and Programs (ACBSP) recognizes individuals each year who 

exemplify teaching excellence in the classroom. She was honored, along with other regional recipients, at the ACBSP 
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Virtual Conference 2020 in June. The ACBSP Teaching Excellence Award was established in 2002 and this is the first 

year a Capilano University faculty member has been the recipient. 

» External reviewers visited the School of Legal Studies on August 25 to conduct a program review. Their report will be 

forthcoming. 

» Faculty Alaa Al-Musalli (communications) has been working on a concept paper for a Post Baccalaureate Diploma in 

Business Communication and developed a one-week workshop for SFU's Lifelong Learning on syllabi outcomes and 

objectives alignment as part of their program review.  

F A C U L T Y  O F  E D U C A T I O N ,  H E A L T H  &  H U M A N  D E V E L O P M E N T  

» The Health Care Assistant department has successfully partnered with Vancouver Coastal Health (VCH) and the 

Sechelt Hospital Foundation for a second year for sponsorships covering the costs of tuition and books for 10 

students during 2020–21. Upon graduation, sponsored students will be hired immediately into an 18-month work 

contract in VCH home and community care. 

» All second-year students in the Rehabilitation Assistant diploma program successfully completed six weeks of 

practicum in July and August in B.C. health authorities after the course was disrputed with COVID-19. The program is 

grateful to its partner physiotherapists and occupational therapists for their support. Students had practicum 

placements in facilities in Bella Coola, Prince George, Comox and throughout the Lower Mainland.  

» Planning continues for the construction of a second childcare facility on campus (Centre for Childhood Studies). The 

University has engaged the services of an architecture firm and a management structure has been established to guide 

the planning process. The construction of the facility will be supported by $3-million in funding received from the 

provincial government through the Childcare BC New Spaces Fund. 

» The University One for Aboriginal Learners certificate program has strong enrolment and has relaunched after a one-

year hiatus. The program helps to prepare Indigenous students for success in University studies through a 

combination of preparatory and 100-level courses, cohort-based learning and robust student support. The program 

will be delivered remotely this year, with enhanced participation from CapU Elders-in-Residence. 

» The Access Work Experience department has received one-time funding to deliver the Discover Employability 

program in 2020–21. This program prepares adults with developmental disabilities for employment and further 

education through cohort-based learning, peer mentorship and practicums. This is the second year in a row that the 

program is being delivered—evidence of strong demand on the North Shore to support these learners once they leave 

the K-12 system. 

F A C U L T Y  O F  G L O B A L  &  C O M M U N I T Y  S T U D I E S  

» Operating within newly Senate approved bylaws, GCS held its first faculty meeting on August 31, including planning 

conversations for schools and the faculty in order to align our work within Envisioning 2030. Stephanie Wells, has 

been acclaimed the faculty vice-chair for 2020–2021. 

» The School of Tourism hosted a successful virtual reception to personally congratulate all TREC grads and was 

honoured to have two leaders in the industry send messages to the newly minted TREC professionals, Bruce Poon Tip, 

founder of G Adventures/CapU honorary doctorate recipient and Walt Judas, CEO of the Tourism Industry 

Association of BC. 
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» Two new committees have been formed in the School of Tourism: Indigenization committee of five faculty members 

who are working on ToRs and committee goals: how to align with the University Envisioning 2030 goals and engage 

with Indigenous student voices and a research committee of seven faculty. 

» Faculty Roy Jantzen (TREC) is focusing his education leave on writing a book and continuing his professional 

development within the UN Sustainable Development Goals.  

» Five faculty have secured positions to edit the Introduction to Tourism & Hospitality BC open textbook due out late fall. 

» Following the theme of outdoor recreation, the OREC team hosted a virtual campfire focused on incoming students as 

part of the fall retention strategy. 

 

» Nazmi Kamal raised funds for both the CapilanoU Emergency Bursary 

Fund and the BC Hospitality Foundation by biking over 110km to visit 

(physically distanced) 19 of his international students from his tourism 

sales class. He says, “they are all international students and lack access to 

their facilities and communities during this time of isolation.”  

» Christy Dodds, STM’s co-operative education coordinator, co-authored “Understanding Ethical Risk for Co-op 

Practitioners” for the winter edition of Careering Magazine. 

» A Master’s Program Development Plan and Research Framework report has been completed and tabled with the 

school in June. 

» PADM 202 Local Government Finance in BC textbook has been rewritten by instructor Lisa Zwarn, with Alison 

McNeil, PADM chair, and Isabel Gordon, director of financial services at the District of West Vancouver, also on the 

project team. Process included review of the text by outside readers from the local government sector. PADM 

secured a generous contribution of $28,000 from the Municipal Finance Authority’s Education Fund for this project. 

 

» A PADM student orientation and resource eLearn site was developed and launched by Anna Delaney, departmental 

assistant, in August 2020, providing helpful online welcome information and resources for new and continuing students. 
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F A C U L T Y  O F  F I N E  &  A P P L I E D  A R T S  

» On May 14, the Faculty of Fine & Applied Arts hosted an “Online 

Career Fair for the Creative Industries”. The online fair went from 

9:30–4:30 p.m. and hosted 20 different program sessions. 

Faculty did an amazing job of presenting their programs in 

innovative ways while connecting with online participants. Our 

audience included high school students, counsellors, teachers 

and parents from schools in the North Shore, Lower Mainland 

and as far away as Mt. Sentinel in South Slocan and Sisler High 

School in Winnipeg. 

» The Indigenous Digital Accelerator has on-boarded Chastity 

Davis Consulting as our first Indigenous-led business 

acceleration project. Chastity Davis is an experienced principal 

consultant with a demonstrated history of working in the 

government relations industry. Davis recently received two 

awards for her business: Young Entrepreneur of the Year, 

Outstanding Business Achievement (BC Aboriginal Business 

Awards); and Forty Under 40 (Business in Vancouver magazine). 

» Costuming for Stage & Screen diploma completed its program 

review and received an external review team response letter. 

» 2D/3D Emmy nominations: Animation grads worked on Dragon Prince 

(Bardel) and Carmen Sandiego (Wildbrain) which have both been 

nominated for Emmy awards. The Rocketeer (Icon Creative Studio) with 

graduates from 3D and VFX was also nominated.  

» IDEA School of Design had 14 students' work place among the winners 

in Applied Arts' Magazine's Annual Student Competition. This contest 

accepts entries from both the US and Canada. For more about our CapU 

student awards, visit: Applied-Arts-CapU-Winners. Image on the right: 

Coralie Mayer won the award for illustration for her work “Single”.  

» IDEA School of Design: Congratulations to Haluka Yagi (IDEA Grad 

2021) for receiving the Registered Graphic Designers (RGD) Honourable 

Mention for Packaging Design with her “En Sake” project. 

» BlueShore Financial Centre for the Performing Arts secured additional 

funding through the Capilano University Foundation team to purchase 

live-stream technology to augment and support programming through 

the 2020/21 academic season. Additionally, this investment will support 

the development of branding and digital assets to create a consistent, 

shared experience and further promote the relationship with Blueshore 

Financial in a time where many theatres cannot operate. 

Sch 7

Page 29 of 178 
BoG Agenda Package

https://www.appliedartsmag.com/winners-gallery/student/?year=2020&category=&searchkw=Capilano+University+IDEA+School+of+Design&layout=grid&sort=school


 PRESIDENT’S REPORT TO THE BOARD | 7 

 

» A Bachelor of Motion Pictures Arts first year student film, Detached, will screen at the DaVinci International Film 

Festival in LA, September 10–13, in the COVIDAVINCI category. The students on the production team are Natalia 

Bahamon, Mika Heiskanen, Mia Oberholzer, Ethan Sands and Michael Tsen. 

» Fourth-year Bachelor of Motion Pictures Arts student, Benjamin Cross won the Great Yellowknife Music Video 

Challenge with his video for the song “Yellowknife” by Juno Award winning artist Craig Cardiff. 

https://youtu.be/Jdq0tA3bAXg 

KÁ L A X - A Y  /  S U N S H I N E  C O A S T  C A M P U S  

» The regional campus has begun the Fall 2020 term feeling 

optimistic that we have taken every possible precaution to 

ensure our learners' and employees' health and safety. 

Many thanks to our Emergency Operations Centre and 

facilities colleagues whose herculean efforts we appreciate! 

Without our ability to greet returning and new students as 

we have in the past, the kálax-ay campus conveys a warm 

welcome the first week of the term. 

» Work is beginning to take shape on the work-tntegrated 

project for the Sunshine Coast through the University 

project funded by the province's Co-Op WIL Initiative. We 

look forward to connecting and learning more about employers' and communities' emergent needs on the Sunshine 

Coast and developing robust work-integrated learning opportunities for our students—building connections and 

capacity along the Coast. 

» The shíshálh Nation successfully received funding from The Ministry of Advanced Education, Skills and Training 

(AEST) to continue the Pathways 2 Higher Learning (P2HL) Indigenous ABE program. Capilano University is walking 

together with the Nation to provide relevant learning opportunities for its people. 

L I B R A R Y  

» Library opening: The library opened on Monday, August 24 in preparation for the Fall term. During the summer, 

shields were installed at service desks and at employee workstations and furniture was removed to ensure a minimum 

two-metre physical distancing across the student study and computer spaces on both floors of the library. As of 

September 8, the library is now open Monday to Friday, 8–7 p.m. 

» New library services and academic support services chat: On September 1, the library launched the Library Services 

chat, staffed by library employees. This chat is intended to replicate the library services desk in the remote 

environment and is a place where students and faculty can ask library-related questions. Library staff are now also 

monitoring and answering questions coming through the new Academic Support Services chat. Through this chat, 

library employees will help students navigate the remote environment, learn about academic supports available to 

them and connect them with appropriate services.  

» Library teaching: The team at Capilano University Library pride themselves on their dedication to student learning and 

exemplary information literacy instruction. Developing student research and resource evaluation skills is a priority in 

their teaching, but like all areas of the University, the pandemic posed many challenges. Over the summer the library's 

teaching program rapidly pivoted to online instruction, finding modest success and even embracing new opportunities 
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provided by the online learning environment. Moving into the Fall term, liaison librarians are pleased to be able to 

offer synchronous classes that replicate the curriculum and content of in-person classes, as well as asynchronous 

options such as video tutorials, interactive online quizzes and assignments and research guides tailored to specific 

course work. 

» A new research guide on the Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) (https://libguides.capilanou.ca/COVID19) was created 

by librarian, Fiacre Ó Duinn. It includes links to collections of the latest data and statistics, journals and books made 

available by publishers for the duration of the crisis, PPE standards, general literature on pandemics and epidemics and 

primary resources.  

» “Smart Start”: Krystyna Nowak, teaching & outreach librarian, co-presented a “Smart Start” webinar with Dara Greaves 

of the Writing Centre called "Researching it Write: Understanding & Getting Help with your Research Assignments" 

on September 4. The webinar taught new students what a research assignment is, how to interpret research 

assignment instructions and how the Library and Writing Centre can help students with different aspects of their 

research assignments.  

» Online practicum student: Over the Summer term, the library had the unique opportunity to host a practicum student 

from the University of Toronto's iSchool as all of their practicum projects moved online. Will Trefiak joined a small 

project team for two months to create a resource guide for students undertaking a CityStudio North Vancouver 

project. The team included Adele Therias, CityStudio project lead here at CapU, and the project idea emerged from 

her work with students in Laurie Prange's BADM 466: Managing Change. The guide brings together research, best 

practices and a repository of past projects to help students understand the many steps and supports required to 

execute a successful project. Will brought his experience with local government and open data to the project, and 

reported: "It was great working with librarians and faculty at CapU on this project, I appreciated everyone's patience 

and expertise!" 

I N D I G I N O U S  E D U C A T I O N  A N D  A F F A I R S  

» A  Canadian Post-Secondary Indigenous Planning Environmental Scan is complete (internal working document) and is 

being used to establish a framework for Capilano University’s Indigenous plan. 

» The Indigenous Advisory Circle, a strategic and relational table that will meet bi-annually with the Capilano University 

president, is in the process of being launched. 

» The Indigenous Education Steering Committee, which will meet quarterly with the director of Indigenous education 

and affairs to discuss programming needs and aspirations, will have its first meeting in September 2020.  

» We are currently planning for a COVID-19 safe launch ceremony for Skw’chays.  

A C A D E M I C  I N I T I A T I V E S  A N D  P L A N N I N G  

» Following on the successes of Year 1, we are pleased to share the 2019–2020 CityStudio North Vancouver Annual 

Report with the University community. In the initiative’s first year, there were twelve course collaborations with 

municipal partners involving 356 students from across four faculties. Excitingly, we are embarking on ten course 

collaborations in Fall 2020 with the participation of students from all five faculties. For more information on upcoming 

2020–2021 activities, explore CityStudio North Vancouver. 
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» Building on a Spring 2020 review of sector best practices and in consultation with faculty focus groups, Academic 

Initiatives & Planning (AIP) has overseen the implementation of refinements to the program development process and 

supports. In addition to the adoption of annual approval timelines for concept papers to assist with University planning 

and resource allocation, AIP is also providing expanded research support during the conceptualization and 

development stages of program development. Additionally, AIP and institutional research are in the early stages of 

identifying new collaboration opportunities to strengthen the University’s ability to make data-informed decisions 

regarding program development and renewal. 

» In late August, AIP led a one-day workshop with the 2020–2021 Program Review group of seven programs (17 faculty 

involved) and faculty will have an opportunity to reflect on future directions and programmatic opportunities as they 

relate to Envisioning 2030 and the 2030 Academic Plan (under development), as well as connecting with their 

program advisory committees and external subject matter experts during site visits.  

C E N T R E  F O R  T E A C H I N G  E X C E L L E N C E  

» Ready for remote learning: Significant activity has been ongoing in the CTE to ensure faculty and students are 

prepared for remote teaching and learning. Major improvements have been made to eLearn, our online learning 

management system, in time for the Fall semester to enhance the experience of remote and online learning. Our 

educational developers have produced 27 educational technology videos this summer, created online course 

templates for faculty and in a three-week period prior to the start of the Fall term have facilitated workshops for more 

than 235 faculty and have conducted 129 individual consultations.  

» Our new student digital ambassadors provide peer support for students navigating the online and remote learning 

environment and help to build an online community for learners. This program has been well received by students and 

faculty and was the topic of a recent article by the Georgia Straight. 

» Frank Fucile has joined the CTE team as an educational technology specialist to support the digital enhancement of 

high-quality learning experiences.  Frank is an experienced elearning specialist and instructional designer working 

previously at VIU, Royal Roads and at BCcampus where he was the manager of collaborative services working with 

post-secondary institutions across B.C. to implement shared educational technology platforms. 

» Brit Paris Ph.D (c) has joined the CTE as an educational developer. Brit comes to CapU from the University of Calgary 

where she has developed programming on educational leadership, feedback literacy and instructional design along 

with supporting faculty in the transition to remote teaching. Brit was also the managing editor for the journal Papers 

on Postsecondary Learning and Teaching.  

» The CTE Spring 2020 Book Club published a 

discussion guide to accompany A Mind 

Spread Out on the Ground by Alicia Elliott 

The book club engaged members in deep, 

thoughtful, and sometimes difficult 

conversations about the many challenges 

facing Indigenous peoples today. This 

publication is the result of those 

conversations and explorations.  
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» CTE Director, Laura MacKay is on the provincial advisory for the B.C. Post-Secondary Collaboration for Open Online 

courses. This project, in collaboration with BCcampus and the BC Council on Admissions and Transfer, will create 

system-wide sharing of curriculum development expertise and capacity to build online common resources for the 

most highly transferrable courses. Laura is also on the advisory for a new BCcampus program on studio learning.  

» Integrated Classroom Advancement Project: Over the summer, the software refresh was completed for all classrooms, 

labs and student spaces at the North Vancouver and kálax-ay Sunshine Coast Campus campuses. Lifecycle 

replacements of projectors and podiums in seven classrooms were successfully installed. Due to budgeting and 

limited on-site resources necessary to comply with COVID-19 restrictions, updates to classroom furnishings were not 

undertaken this year.  

C R E A T I V E  A C T I V I T Y ,  R E S E A R C H  A N D  S C H O L A R S H I P  

» New Mitacs Student Research Award: Five recipients announced over the summer 

 

» Congratulations to five recipients of the new Mitacs Student Research Award! Despite an unusual end of term, these 

five students completed their capstone projects and are being recognized by the Student Research Symposium 

committee Mitacs for outstanding work. This is the first year that Mitacs, a federal research funding agency, has 

sponsored Student Research Awards with cash prizes. And while the in-person Student Research Symposium was 

cancelled due to COVID-19 this year, students were thrilled to have their work adjudicated and receive a Mitacs 

award. We recognize the students for their hard work and thank Mitacs for their support.  

» New NSERC eligibility: CapU has recently met the eligibility requirements for the federal research funding agency, 

Natural Sciences and Engineering Research Council (NSERC). This will allow the University to apply to NSERC for a 

broad range of competitive peer-reviewed research funding. The objective of NSERC funding is to increase innovation 

at the community and/or regional level by enabling post-secondary institutions to increase their capacity to work with 

local companies, particularly small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs). NSERC funding supports applied research 

and collaborations that facilitate commercialization, as well as technology transfer, adaptation and adoption of new 

products, processes and technologies. 
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F I N A N C E  &  A D M I N I S T R A T I O N  

F A C I L I T I E S  S E R V I C E S  A N D  C A M P U S  P L A N N I N G  

» Health and Safety and emergency preparedness pivoted from COVID-19 response to COVID-19 recovery with a 

focus on planning a safe and healthy resumption of limited on-campus activities for Fall 2020. The summer has been 

spent applying public health and WSBC requirements to our environments, including: adjusting building occupancies 

to support hygiene and physical distancing needs; risk assessing in-person activities and working with employees to 

apply appropriate safe work practices; removing and moving furniture to support these initiatives and ensuring that 

appropriate signage and check-ins are in place to inform our community of their collective and individual 

responsibilities.  

» The construction of the Centre for Student Success Phase 2 in the Library Building is nearing completion. Various 

student-facing support services will be brought together into one convenient location. The space will also include café 

seating, universal washrooms, study and collaboration areas. Furniture and AV equipment installations will take place 

in the upcoming months. 

» Functional programming continues to be developed for the Centre for Childhood Studies building. The building 

includes a 74-seat childcare centre, academic laboratory to support course curriculum, offices and classrooms. 

» Design of a new wall envelope for the Library Building (1973 portion) is underway. Energy efficiency will be 

significantly improved with a high-performing curtain wall system while dramatically enhancing the aesthetic value of 

the building. Construction may begin in early 2021 pending approvals from the District of North Vancouver. 

» The District of North Vancouver is currently reviewing the detailed planning application of on-campus student 

housing. The proposed Phase 1 includes a 360-bed building with a dining hall. Project updates are anticipated in the 

coming months. 

» Several maintenance projects are wrapping up including an upgrade to the main electrical distribution system at the 

BC Hydro incomer point to increase power supply to our North Vancouver campus and the renewal of fire systems 

alarm controls in the Cedar, Fir and Willow Buildings. 

» Facilities operations has successfully developed and implemented a preventative maintenance plan for all building 

systems as well as the campus grounds. When a system requires maintenance, a work order is now automatically 

generated and assigned to staff.  

H U M A N  R E S O U R C E S  

» Respectful Workplace Training— Reboot: Equity, diversity and inclusion are a key element of Envisioning 2030 and are 

the cornerstone to creating a respectful working environment at CapU. As such, the HR department has reviewed and 

updated our Respectful Workplace Training to ensure we are on the path to creating a diverse and inclusive culture. 

The training has now been split into two sessions: Respectful Workplace Training 1 and Respectful Workplace 

Training 2. 

» Respectful Workplace Training 1 is the required training covering WorkSafeBC legislation. This online-on-demand 

training helps employees recognize and prevent discriminating, bullying and harassing behaviours and understand 

CapU’s policy and procedure for responding and reporting. Respectful Workplace Training 1 is a pre-requisite to 

Respectful Workplace Training 2. 
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» Respectful Workplace Training 2 brings together employees to start the conversation about what diversity, inclusivity 

and equity look like at CapU and how we all contribute to it. To facilitate the updated training, HR will be rolling out 

Respectful Workplace Training 2 sessions throughout the fall with all employees encouraged to complete the online 

Respectful Workplace Training 1 session and attend a Respectful Workplace Training 2 virtual workshop. 

I N F O R M A T I O N  T E C H N O L O G Y  S E R V I C E S  

» The COVID-19 pandemic has necessitated an increased reliance on 

digital alternatives to numerous activities and operations across the 

University. The technology budget and associated projects were re-

prioritized based on widespread discussions as to what is needed, from 

a technology lens, to support longer-term adaptation. Five key 

technology themes emerged from these discussions, and the report 

Digital Delivery—IT Services Work Plan July to September 2020 

outlines this work in detail. Some notable achievements include: 

 

» Advancing eLearn: our learning management system, 

based on Moodle and branded as eLearn, is being used 

by students, faculty and administrative employees. In 

collaboration with the CTE and marketing & digital 

experience, the interface was refreshed to enhance 

intuitiveness and ease-of-use. IT staff applied a number 

of patches, hotfixes, security fixes and upgrades to 

improve the responsiveness and robustness of this 

critical platform. A number of plug-ins were added for 

additional features and functionality. 

» Expansion of video-conferencing tools: Additional investment was made to implement Zoom for all CapU employees, 

including faculty, to support the 2020/21 academic year. The University also offers Webex and MS Teams as 

platforms for centrally-supported video conferencing. Recognizing that it is not sustainable to support a wide-range of 

tools for the same purpose, due to platform fatigue, support needs and licensing costs, the Educational Technology 

Advisory Committee will be undertaking an evaluation of video-conferencing technologies and making a 

recommendation for platform standardization. 

» Virtual computer labs: off-campus student access to software running in on-campus computer labs was a pre-existing 

challenge; this gap in our infrastructure was highlighted in the current situation. Work was completed over the 

summer to implement AppsAnywhere, a platform enabling students to access existing software resources from any 

computer with an Internet connection. 

» Operational upgrades and improvements: alongside the new priorities and projects facing IT Services, the need to 

maintain a stable, reliable and secure technology environment is more important than ever. Work continues to 

advance our cybersecurity strategy and demonstrable improvement in our third-party security rating was noted in the 

period of March to June. A number of updates and patches were applied to our numerous software assets in order to 

patch bugs, introduce new functionality, address cybersecurity issues and maintain their useful life. Work continues on 

the maintenance of our physical technology assets (i.e., computers, laptops, classroom equipment) and a shift was 

made to provide laptops rather than desktops to employees, further enabling remote work. 
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S T U D E N T  H O U S I N G  S E R V I C E S  

» Hiring is underway for a housing DDA who is now on maternity leave and a posting for a manager of housing is in process. 

» A residence meal plan was secured with Chartwells. 

» “Move In Day” was organized and coordinated on residence grounds and complied with COVID-19 regulations. 

» A COVID-19 exposure control plan is in place for domestic and international students. Facilities have all been cleaned 

and debugged. 

» New TV monitors have been installed in the residence dining hall. 

» Residence advising training has been completed. 

» Student residence door access/ID cards and photos have been completed. 

» Starrez software implementation has been completed. This is used for incident reports, programming proposals, 

searching students, submitting maintenance requests, etc. 

» A Books on Beds program has been completed with the Bookstore. 

S T R A T E G I C  P L A N N I N G ,  A S S E S S M E N T  A N D  I N S T I T U T I O N A L  E F F E C T I V E N E S S  

I N T E G R A T E D  P L A N N I N G  

» After careful consideration of multiple scenarios, and thanks to the consistent collaboration of everybody involved, a 

revised 2020/21–2022/23 Integrated Plan has been developed and released. This new version provides a candid 

discussion on our accomplishments, our challenges and our planned actions with the hope that everyone will better 

understand our collective decisions and actions. To forge ahead in 2020 and beyond towards Envisioning 2030, we 

will have to work closely together to address our immediate challenges and adopt a resumption planning and 

implementation approach for the next integrated planning cycle that is just about to start. 

E N V I S I O N I N G  2 0 3 0  

» Envisioning 2030 presentations to all the faculties and departments were delivered to introduce our new vision, 

purpose, values, framework and institutional goals and priorities. In order to assist in the process to align goals and 

priorities to the Envisioning 2030 desired future, meetings and customized processes have been developed for 

multiple faculties and departments. Diverse activities are underway, including the release of an official Envisioning 

2030 landing page, to further the initial implementation stage of our new framework. It is important at this stage that 

our community starts embracing and practicing our new set of values as we gradually incorporate Envisioning 2030 

into upcoming integrated planning rounds. A series of external presentations will start in the fall to share Envisioning 

2030 with external stakeholders. 

S T R A T E G I C  E N R O L M E N T  M A N A G E M E N T  ( S E M )  

» The SEM committee met on August 20 with two primary goals. The first was to agree on near-term enrolment 

planning targets due to COVID-19 impacts; the second was to provide updates regarding the recommendations 

outlined in the AACRAO Consulting report. The near-term enrolment planning discussion provided an opportunity for 
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members of the academic leadership to agree on high level planning assumptions. This establishes the foundation for 

calculating key enrolment indicators such as recruitment rates, retention rates and student mix. Members of the SEM 

committee provided their respective updates on the progress made regarding the SEM recommendations by 

AACRAO. A few highlights included: a new waitlist monitoring dashboard set and process which led to an increase in 

domestic and international course registrations in the Summer term; a new CapU branding direction and identity 

campaign to address the lack of unique branding; an improved applications review process which yielded higher 

conversion rates for both applications to offers and applications to registrants; and a CapU Cares Student Fund which 

further increased financial aid available for students. 

C O N T I N U I N G  S T U D I E S   

» Continuing Studies changed its name from Continuing Studies & Executive Education to Continuing Studies. The new 

name is more inclusive of the range of programs offered, from summer camps to executive training.  

» In partnership with IT, we launched a new e-commerce website in July 2020. The new website provides more 

information on our offerings and has greater search capabilities. 

» Launched 50+ brand new online courses in topics ranging from leadership to project management to website design. 

Courses are offered in one of three online course formats. Cohort-based courses are offered asynchronously and 

allow learners to collaborate with peers to learn new skills. Self-paced courses, offered in partnership with MindEdge, 

give learners the flexibility to start anytime, from anywhere. Online: Live! provides synchronous courses offered on a 

video-conference platform such as Zoom. 

» All of the new courses are offered as part of a stackable program framework that recognizes learner progress in 

increments. Learners can apply what they learned in a short program towards the completion of a larger one. In this 

way, learners can choose from over 20 new programs. 

» In partnership with Beranger Consulting Group in Paraguay, we are offering a Spanish language online non-credit 

course in government administration. The pilot course begins in November and we hope to enroll over 100 Latin 

American public servants. If successful, more courses will be offered in Spring 2021. 

C E N T R E  F O R  I N T E R N A T I O N A L  E X P E R I E N C E  

» COVID-19 has created a challenging situation for international education. Issues affecting international education are: 

immigration, refugees, Citizenship Canada (IRCC) rules around entering the country and completing requirements to 

apply for a Post Graduate Work Permit (PGWP); air access to the country with international airline services now at 5% 

of pre-COVID-19 levels; University capacity for online delivery and related residency requirements for graduation; 

and the desire and ability for international students to study and succeed online.  

» With respect to IRCC rules, currently only students that have an approved study visa from before March 18 and need 

to participate in courses in-person can enter the country to begin their studies. Many students are attempting to travel 

here, and many are succeeding, but equally, others have been denied border entry. All students entering the country 

must self-isolate and we have developed a self-isolation and quarantine plan which is posted on our website. Our 

quarantine plan was approved by the provincial government and we have been recommended to IRCC to be an 

approved DLI to accept international students. 

» Despite the challenges presented by COVID-19, we reached our application targets for Fall 2020 with 2,200 

international applications to our programs. We provided letters of acceptance to over 600 new students and around 
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350 new international students have started their studies for the fall. Global surveys indicate that around 70% of 

international students willl defer their studies until they are able to participate in person, so we have achieved a higher 

rate than what appears to be average rates for most countries. We are fortunate in the sense that we had extremely 

strong international admissions over the past two years (134% increase) and were targeting reduced new international 

student enrolment this year to balance out domestic and international enrolment. As a result, our returning 

international student numbers were very high and we have an overall 14% reduced international enrolment compared 

to last year, but this is a reasonably strong number compared to peer institutions.  

» In alignment with the draft Internationalization Plan, we have been seeking to change our international recruitment 

and marketing activities, and ironically, COVID-19 has provided the need and the window of opportunity to change 

many of our practices as had been articulated in the plan. Over this year, due to the fact that we can not travel 

internationally, we have shifted to online fairs that are being conducted regularly around the world, and we have 

conducted over 10 direct online recruitment sessions to incoming and prospective students, and made especially 

strong attempts to encourage new students to start their studies online. We are also in the process of establishing 

three global regional offices to conduct marketing and agent support locally. Additionally, we are embarking on a 

global branding strategy and campaign in collaboration with MDX with the goal of raising our global brand awareness 

and ensuring we have a stronger stream of international student applications and admissions to sustain enrolment as 

current international students complete their programs of study.  

» Due to employment limitations, isolation, the shift to online learning and the inability of international students to 

return home or bring family members here, we remain concerned about their well-being, especially as we enter into 

increased social restrictions in the winter months. We have a team dedicated to the well-being of international 

students and are conducting regular open sessions to check in on students, and we have a mentorship network to 

maintain social engagement activities throughout the term. 

» Despite global mobility challenges, we continue to participate in study abroad planning and activities. Tourism has just 

completed the first successful virtual field school that was operated online here in Canada with field correspondents in 

Vietnam. This adapted approach was implemented as we were forced to cancel the Cambodia/Vietnam field school 

originally scheduled for April this year. Over 20 students have also been interviewed and accepted for exchange 

studies in the Spring term. We are monitoring conditions to determine if these will proceed, however, this illustrates 

the on-going enthusiasm students have for participating in global endeavours. 

O F F I C E  O F  I N S T I T U T I O N A L  R E S E A R C H  

» The team welcomed a new interim Director of Strategy, Analytics and Institutional Research in July. Since then, the 

team has made significant progress on a number of key portfolio projects, including re-designing internal surveys to 

improve relevance and response rates, improving existing data visualizations to better suit end-user needs and 

providing one-on-one CapU analytics training for users across the University to reduce potential barriers for data-

informed decision making. The team is excited to continue to strengthen the University's analytical capabilities by 

collaborating with key units across the University and by adopting a new team vision to shift from a traditional 

institutional-research mindset to a strategic-analytics mindset. 

D I V I S I O N  O F  S T U D E N T  S U C C E S S  

» Daniel Levangie has been appointed associate vice president, student success. Effective Monday, July 20, 2020, 

Daniel now oversees student affairs, athletics and recreation, accessibility services, student housing, counselling 

services, learning success and the career development centre. Daniel joined Capilano University in May of 2019 as 
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director of student affairs and services. Since then, he has made an exceptional contribution to CapU, distinguishing 

himself as a thoughtful leader across a wide variety of student success and support platforms. The recruitment 

process for the new head of student affairs and services has begun. 

» Accessibility services, in collaboration with MDX and IT, now have an appointment booking button on their webpage 

(which also has a fresh new look) for students to book appointments directly with accessibility services advisors 

through Target X. Accessibility services is now using Target X to collect key metrics for planning and information 

purposes.  

» Built Return to Sport Guidelines with respect to COVID-19 for varsity sports and training. 

» Conducted planning for re-opening the weight room and CapU Rec programs. 

» Hosted monthly virtual Strava movement challenges/virtual races for the campus community. 

» Joined the Recreation 2020 Movement virtual portal, giving students/employees access to hundreds of live/pre-

recorded fitness classes from Universities across North America for free.  

» Worked with internal and external stakeholders to develop the Move More North Shore program. Planning to launch a 

virtual model for January 2021.  

» Successfully applied for the North Shore Active Living Grant through Vancouver Coastal Health for the Move More 

North Shore program. 

» Developed and planned virtual fitness classes for the social portion of Orientation Week. 

» Worked with MDX to re-brand CapU Rec's logo, slogan and general brand image (launched in September). 

» For the first time ever, the CDC continued its lunch and learn series in webinar formats over the summer. We offered 

11 webinars in which 102 students participated. 

» Over the summer, we supported students in 129 virtual appointments.  

» The CDC also converted its classroom workshops to webinars to support faculty with the remote delivery of their 

courses. We supported faculty with eight classroom webinars and 147 students. 

» To engage with new and existing students, we participated in JumpStart, Smart Start, mature-student panel, vrtual 

department fair and classroom events reaching a total of 265 students. 

» We have started a few new initiatives to engage students virtually, including a showcase of some of our alumni on 

Instagram live called “Career Insider Live.” We held three sessions over the summer with 51 student participants. We 

are also working with a few alumni to produce videos in which they share their career tips that we can share on social 

media. 
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» Our Organizational Spotlight openings are booked until March 2021. Organizational Spotlight provides employers with 

an opportunity to educate students about their brand on our webpage and social media for a period of two weeks. 

» Two students have filled the CapU sponsored United Way campaign associates role. 

» To build visibility early with new students, we created a newsletter targeted specifically to new incoming students. We 

also created a new video to introduce the CDC so new and existing students and employees understand how the CDC 

supports students. 

» The CDC collaborated with academic advisors by providing training and tools to help them with basic career 

conversations with students. 

» CapU GROW training, which is an intervention to help student employees better reflect and relate on their work 

experience with their academics, was offered to student employee supervisors. 

» Over the summer, we improved and found news ways to make Career Hub easier to navigate and to be more 

engaging with students on social media. We also planned for converting all of our services, programming and events 

for online delivery for Fall 2020. 

» COVID-19 has created significant challenges for universities to connect with their student bodies. Counselling has 

been busily working on both our processes and content as we strive to maintain high level mental health services to 

our students.  Over the past four months, we have successfully implemented appointment booking/note taking 

software. This system allows clients to schedule meeting times with counsellors online while also housing confidential 

notes and providing key analytic measures to help guide future growth. Video conferencing will soon be added to 

phone therapy to add to the students’ range of options. Counsellors have worked on increasing their capacity to 

support clients who are physically distanced through professional development. 

» Like many other supports on campus, our learning specialist has shifted to virtual supports and found success working 

remotely with students. Upcoming initiatives include redevelopment of web presence in the new virtual setting and 

active collaboration with key partner units to ensure effective referral mechanisms. 

» Since June 2020, the Student Life Hub has had 120 students chat with them on the @capustudentlife Instagram page 

between 10–2 p.m. from Monday to Friday. 

» Peer leader core training took place from August 24–28 with 78 students from nine different 

volunteer/paid/honoraria programs on campus. 

» New Student Orientation (NSO) had a new look and feel this year as we took the entire multi-day event online. 

» New international students attended both the international student webinar and the NSO on September 3, where 

students preregistered for one of the three virtual zoom sessions facilitating general orientation, including the 

welcome, campus tour and a session on what to expect followed by breakout sessions hosted by student orientation 
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leaders. On September 4, we hosted optional Smart Start sessions filled with webinars and online panels for the day 

followed by NETworked, a packed week of online social events for all students.  On September 8, students 

participated in their specific academic unit/program orientations. 

» Check out the welcome video featuring President Paul Dangerfield. 

» And here is a short video clip of our Student Life Hub staff drumming up excitement for Fall 2020 orientation.  

» To kick it all off, approximately 800 welcome packages were distributed at our socially-distanced curbside pick-up 

event September 1–2, where the CapU spirit was in full swing. Packages contained CapU merchandise and other 

crowd-pleasing golden ticket items. The events were so successful, we may have caused a few traffic jams!  

                

» The main virtual orientation sessions had a total of 780 students, with 636 of them continuing on to the breakout 

sessions hosted and facilitated by our CapU student orientation leaders. Smart Start offered 23 virtual workshops with 

320 students attending. There was also a lunchtime department fair, with 20 CapU departments hosting virtual rooms 

and an evening community fair brought things to a close. 

» Orientation this year has been a massive collaborative effort involving the student affairs team, the events and 

ceremonies team, university releations, CIE, marketing, facilities and various university departments. Students 

participating in orientation should feel connected, inspired, empowered and ready to start at CapU. 

R E G I S T R A R  

» Since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Registrar’s Office (RO) has been offering all of its services remotely. 

Our team is providing service via email, telephone and by video conferencing. Providing a high level of service to 

students and the University community remains our top priority. Remote service will continue throughout the Fall 

term and will be reassessed for the Spring 2021 term. 

» The Registrar’s Office is currently engaged with Jorge Oceguera from strategic planning to develop a vision for the 

department that aligns with Envisioning 2030. The outcome of this initiative will culminate in a tangible service 

experience that the RO provides to all of our applicants, students and University partners. All employees in the RO will 

also be able to see how their work feeds into and aligns with Envisioning 2030. Completion of this project is targeted 

for mid-fall. 

» At the September 8 meeting of Senate, the RO presented 475 students who had completed the requirements for their 

respective credentials. This was an increase in the number of graduates compared to September 2019, when 366 
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students graduated. Senate approved the list of students and they will now have the opportunity to take part in the 

University’s next convocation ceremony. Congratulations to all! 

» In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Fall 2020 term courses are being offered in an adapted delivery format. 

Approximately 80% of the courses are being offered in a remote (online) format. The remaining 20% of the courses 

are being offered as mixed mode (a mix of in person and online) and in person. The scheduling team worked closely 

with the campus planning and health & safety teams to ensure that all in-person courses adhered to the Ministry of 

Health mandated health and safety guidelines. Planning for the Fall 2020 final exams is currently underway and the 

majority of the final exams will be held remotely. 

» The Banner curriculum reconfiguration project is currently in the testing phase. Testing is being conducted to ensure 

that the new alpha-numeric program codes that will replace the existing program codes will work within our existing 

systems. The projected completion of the project will be February 2021. 

» The financial aid & awards department adjudicated over 1,400 applications as part of the CapU Cares Campaign in 

August. Nine hundred recipients were selected, which included 260 new students and 640 returning students. 

» On September 4, the financial aid advisors facilitated two student sessions as a part of Smart Start: Funding your 

education and how to apply for scholarships and awards. On September 10 and 18, two more workshops on how to 

apply for scholarships and awards were held for students. 

» The recruitment team is busy gearing up for a first of its kind, fully virtual online recruitment season. In partnership 

with Marketing and Digital Experience (MDX), the recruitment department is equipped with videos and visual assets 

that will allow prospective students and their supporters an insider’s look at studying at CapU. 

» We have seen strong growth and interest in our programs due to our new digital presence on SchoolFinder.com. CapU 

recruitment was already preparing for a stronger online footprint and COVID has provided us with a back drop to 

further our reach. That being said, recruitment understands the importance faculty play in our recruitment and we will 

be working with program areas to support new initiatives to bring the CapU classroom experience to key feeder high 

schools in the area. 

» A thorough review of year 1 of the centralized admissions model took place in August. With feedback from various 

constituents in the CapU community, we will be implementing an improved version of the model starting in October. 

Program areas can expect to be introduced to their exclusive admissions facilitator in September for launch in 

October. Additionally, Education Planner British Columbia (EPBC) is working with CapU to ensure seamless transition 

to XML transcript reception—a new and improved way to receive transcripts in a timely manner throughout the year. 

Efficient, accurate and timely are the three pillars we are working to achieve in the 2020/2021 academic year. Thank 

you to all of our University partners for your support during these times of exciting change! 

» Our advisors have been busy during the summer working remotely. Advisors have handled over 4,400 inquires 

through emails, phone appointments and virtual student appointments since late June. 
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» The advisors facilitated three sessions as a part of Smart Start: Inside the Classroom, Balanced Course load/balanced 

life, and Smart Academic Planning. On September 15, a session partnering with CIE on student success and transition 

to the University will be held for newly admitted international students. 

» Another ongoing initiative that academic advising is working on is meeting with program areas to gain a better 

understanding of programs and courses. This will enable advisors to enhance their knowledge which will provide the 

opportunity for more in-depth advising sessions with students. 

U N I V E R S I T Y  R E L A T I O N S  

University Relations (UR) includes communications, government relations, community engagement development & alumni 

relations, marketing & digital experience and university events. University Relations goals are to: enhance the University’s 

reputation, develop positive relationships and secure resources to support University priorities. 

U N I V E R S I T Y  R E L A T I O N S  

» The new reality of bringing the community together during COVID-19 led to the first inaugural honorary degree 

recipients’ virtual reception. To foster the recruitment and retention of students, the VP university relations created 

the CapU Cares Student Fund and launched the fundraising campaign at an event hosted by the President. A 

significant gift was made after the event, and in August more than $413,000 in donations were secured from 

individuals, employees, CUAA and corporations to support the initiative.   

» In August 2020, the university relations portfolio, working with financial aid and awards, announced the CapU Cares 

Student Fund initiative to students. A total of 1,436 award applications were received, resulting in 260 new students 

(226 domestic and 40 international) and 640 returning students (434 domestic and 206 international) each receiving 

$450 in support for their 2020–2021 studies. A marketing campaign was created around the initiative to share with 

the broader community how CapU is supporting students during the pandemic. 

» UR officially established the chancellor’s office within UR to help onboard and coordinate the chancellor’s schedule for 

pan-university and chancellor events and activities in conjunction with the President’s office. Over the summer 

months each of the portfolios in UR pivoted to support changes to CapU’s operations made necessary by the 

pandemic. At the same time, projects focusing on student recruitment and integrated planning priorities were 

continued, with scaled back budgets.  

» The Discovery Group, a philanthropy and governance consulting firm based in Vancouver, was contracted to conduct 

a feasibility study for a fundraising campaign focused on a new Centre for Early Childhood Care & Education.  

» The portfolio has also completed its COVID-19 work resumption plan, utilizing technology to assist in its compliance 

with the province’s COVID-19 Go-Forward Guidelines for B.C.’s Post-Secondary Sector. 

C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  

» CapU communications’ main focus continues to be the University’s response to COVID-19. Among the many plans 

and information materials that have been prepared to support the remote and adapted delivery of instruction and 

services for a safe Fall 2020 term, the department has prepared a comprehensive COVID-19 communications and 

training plan, including the principles and priorities for communications during this phase of the pandemic. 
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» The website continues to be the core repository of information and FAQs related to working and learning through 

COVID-19. Over the summer, the content that was initially prepared in the early days of the pandemic was 

redeveloped to reflect the shift from crisis to context, response to recovery. In July, the department launched the 

University’s first all-employee COVID-19 Thoughtexchange to collect employees’ perceptions and assess comfort 

levels with the idea of returning to work on-location. The activity generated 440 thoughts and illustrated the range of 

feelings from low-to-no concerns to very specific concerns—many of which were subsequently addressed (i.e., an 

equipment loan program for employees working at home) through new COVID-19 response initiatives and 

considerate planning for September.  

» In addition to COVID-19 communications, the department has developed the University’s guidelines for publications 

review—a requirement of the review currently underway by the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities 

(NWCCU). As well, we announced in this period: Dennis Silvestrone, PhD, CapU’s new dean, faculty of business and 

professional studies; government funding to support the Centre for Early Childhood Care & Education development; 

the student digital ambassadors program; and MITACS student research award recipients.  

M A R K E T I N G  &  D I G I T A L  E X P E R I E N C E  

» In collaboration with the recruitment team and academic advisors, MDX launched a short-term marketing push to 

support targeted program enrolment goals for the upcoming Fall 2020 term. From May 18–July 31, 2020, the 

campaign generated 9,998 online visits to program-related pages and 813 leads. 

 

» Recruiting and MDX are finalizing the upcoming recruitment campaign for 21/22. On August 19, we hosted a focus 

group with current and prospective students to better understand how students are experiencing our campaign. 

We’ve received positive feedback on our progress and we continue to review and refine the work. The campaign is 

scheduled to launch in October 2020 and will run through to the new year. 

» In partnership with IT, MDX continues to work on enhancing capilanou.ca design and user experience. One such 

initiative is the new “Best Bets” functionality—an internal promotions tool to help students find content on our 

website.  

» As we deepen our transition to “data-informed” decisions, MDX is in the process of finalizing its Google Data Studio 

report, which will enable the University to track key metrics across the student journey.  

» Working in partnership with the president’s office, MDX provided graphic design for the Envisioning 2030 plan and 

associated landing page to reflect the plan’s pillars of imagination and creativity.  
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» To support the University’s COVID-19 response, we continue to develop new signage to promote safe and hygienic 

behaviours amongst everyone who is visiting, working and learning on campus. 

D E V E L O P M E N T  A N D  A L U M N I  R E L A T I O N S  

» July 2020 was an exciting month with the announcement of TD Bank Group confirming a $450,000 donation pledged 

over three years, to the Indigenous Digital Accelerator. This was a significant ask and application process that involved 

faculty, external committee members of IDA, the President and the development team. In addition to this great news, 

a number of corporate sponsorships were renewed for the 2020/2021 academic year.   

» The Capilano University Foundation has raised 33.5% of its fundraising goal for 2020/2021. $107,000 was raised to 

support scholarships, bursaries and awards, compared with $49,000 at the same time in 2019. This increase is due to 

the Foundation’s enhanced focus on emergency student funding due to COVID-19, which included a student 

emergency bursary appeal that raised $28,058, with 66% of donations coming from first-time donors to the 

University. 

» The Capilano Students’ Union (CSU) further contributed $75,000 to the Student Emergency Fund and $17,000 to the 

student laptop loaner initiative to support students as they move to a remote mode of study. Shaw Communications 

also contributed $5,000 to the laptop loaner initiative as a result of the relationship with CapU’s chief information 

officer and her work with the CSU to strengthen this program designed to benefit students needing access to reliable, 

portable learning technology. 

» The Foundation also secured more than $413,000 in support of the CapU Cares Student Fund, which financed the 

disbursement of $450 each to 900 new and returning domestic and international students. 
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» In August 2020, the development alumni relations team participated in a four day consultant-led education and 

analysis session, with the goal of educating and positioning the team to move successfully into a new, unprecedented 

level of fundraising and constituent engagement. 

» CapU’s alumni contributed more than $15,000 to the Student Emergency Bursary appeal—an indicator that more 

alumni are engaged and wanting to give back to the community. The Capilano University Alumni Association (CUAA) 

also wanted to show their support for students, especially during COVID-19, by making a contribution to the CapU 

Cares Student fund along with its affinity partner, TD Insurance Melonche Monnex. 

» CUAA’s President Brittany Barnes had the opportunity to congratulate this year’s graduates at the virtual Convocation 

ceremony which is not usually part of the ceremonial programming. It was received with great success. 

» The alumni department is preparing to host its next Shaping the Future lecture on September 17, 2020. “The Future 

of Work” webinar will be moderated by Chancellor Yuri Fulmer, OBC, which coincides with the CapU Alumni 

Association’s annual general meeting.  

» The Alumni Association’s “CapUConnects” series also continued through the summer, hosting separate online events: 

“Quarantinis” with Sons of Vancouver Distillery—a CapU alumni-owned business; “Coping with Anxiety in the Wake of 

a Global Pandemic” with Anxiety Canada; and a lunchtime yoga session in August. 

» Through a unique 12-month mentorship program, the 

Alumni Association is empowering the next generation of 

leaders. The program is designed to help CapU alumni to 

positively impact their communities and shape their 

future. Mentees are matched with leading industry 

experts across a variety of sectors, and receive one-on-

one mentorship, networking opportunities and 

professional development training sessions. Applications 

are currently being accepted for both mentees and 

mentors, with the first cohort launching in October 2020.  

U N I V E R S I T Y  E V E N T S  

» The installation of Chancellor Yuri Fulmer occurred on June 18 at 

11 a.m. British Columbia’s Lieutenant Governor, the Honourable 

Janet Austin, joined the ceremony through Skype to congratulate 

and formally install the chancellor. Respectful of the need for 

physical distancing and the importance of limiting social contact at 

this stage of the pandemic, Yuri’s wife, Alesia Fulmer assisted in 

the robing of the chancellor in his formal regalia and medal of 

office. The ceremony was held at the BlueShore Centre for the 

Performing Arts, with podium guests in attendance and an online 

audience of 346 people. 
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» Convocation 2020 followed the chancellor’s installation on 

the same day at 1 p.m. It was broadcasted from the BlueShore 

Centre for the Performing Arts. Students who registered to 

participate received celebration boxes in the mail the week 

previous and joined online for the ceremony. The Convocation 

website recorded 1,467 views and the corresponding Facebook 

live had 15k views, 229 reactions and 42 shares. Student speaker, 

Dini Stamatopulos, was in person to give a rousing speech to the 

Class of 2020. The ceremony followed with live virtual receptions 

with each department area, giving students and faculty an 

opportunity to reconnect one last time.  

» Over the summer, the department has been working with student success on their virtual orientation and curbside 

welcome package pick up, as well as with recruitment on their first ever Explore Virtual Open House conference. 
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1: B.401 SEXUAL VIOLENCE AND MISCONDUCT POLICY 

PURPOSE:    Approval 
  Information 
  Discussion 

MEETING DATE:  September 29, 2020 

PRESENTER:  Duncan Brown, Governance and Planning Committee Chair 

PURPOSE 

For the Board of Governors to review and approve the proposed updates and revisions to Board Policy 

B.401 Sexual Violence and Misconduct.

RECOMMENDED MOTION 
THAT the Board of Governors approve the revisions to B.401 Section Violence and Misconduct Policy as 
presented. 

BACKGROUND 

In May 2016, the British Columbia government enacted the Sexual Violence and Misconduct Act, 
requiring all public post-secondary institutions to establish a standalone policy regarding sexual violence 
and misconduct within one year of the bill receiving Royal Assent. In May 2017, Capilano University 
passed B.401 Sexual Violence and Misconduct Policy. 

As per the BC Sexual Violence and Misconduct Act, all public post-secondary institutions have been 
required to review and revise their policies, three years after the legislation was passed. In June 2019, 
the Ministry of Advanced Education with BC Campus organized a provincial conference to discuss 
successes and challenges with existing policies and to present new and emergency research and 
promising practices in the field. This conference and the formation of several communities of practice 
provided the foundation to support post-secondary institutions in revising their policies. 

RATIONALE FOR REVISIONS 

Since 2016, there has been an increase in research and recommendations in the field of sexual violence 
response and prevention within post-secondary environments including reports by student union 
groups, a federal report and new resources developed by various provinces. 

Given the substantial increase in research, promising practices and the work of provincial and federal 
working groups in the field of sexual violence within post-secondary institutions since 2016, the policy 
has many proposed revisions. Philosophically and practically, this iteration of the policy and procedures 
reflect a shift away from a traditional, gender-based violence lens towards a harm-reduction, trauma-
informed approach. 

Policies set expectations and community values to create the pathways for future action and decision 
making in regards to social issues and culture change. The proposed revisions to this policy honour that 
sexual violence is a systemic issue, which requires a harm reduction approach within campus 
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communities for effective response and prevention. The revisions recommended are aligned with 
research, promising practices, Ministry recommendations and community consultations. 

Legal counsel reviewed the proposed revisions to the policy and procedure. 

 

The Governance and Planning Committee of the Board reviewed the policy revisions on September 15, 

2020.  At that meeting, Committee moved to recommend to the Board approval of the revisions to 

Policy B.401 Sexual Violence and Misconduct, with the following amendments based on the legal advice 

received and input from the Committee, HR and the Registrar’s Office:   

 Section 2.3 of the policy - Advised by legal counsel to revise the language of this section to 
ensure consistency with the BC Human Rights Code. 

 Section 3 of the policy, Definition of ‘Accommodations’- Advised by legal counsel to remove the 
final sentence as some accommodations can impact the rights of others. 

 Section 3 of the policy, Definition of ‘Intersectional’- Advised by legal counsel to revise the 
language of this section to ensure consistency with the BC Human Rights Code. 

 Section 4.4 of the policy- Amendment suggested by committee to change language from ‘may 
be’ to ‘will be’ in regard to risk assessment. 

 Section 6.1 of the policy- Amendment suggested by HR to include ‘Human Resources’ as part of 
education plan development and implementation. 

 Section 12.1 of the policy- Amendment suggested by Registrar’s Office to remove old appeals 
policy information and replace with current appeals policy information. 

The revisions to the procedures document will be presented to SLC for approval in accordance with 
B.102 Policy on Policy Development and Management. 

CONSULTATION 

The following table sets out the revision and consultation plan for the policy. Note that the BC Sexual 
Violence and Misconduct Act mandates that students are central to campus consultations. 

Consultation Action 
 

Date Collaborators 

Initial consultation with CSU, HR 
and Student Affairs to evaluate 

strengths and gaps of the 
current policy 

September 2019 CSU (Student Union) and HR 

Research into promising 
practises and literature, review 

of other university policies, 
discussions with campus 

partners, provincial 
conversations lead by the 
Ministry of Advanced Ed 

September 2019-Jan 2020 Student Rights and 
Responsibilities Advisor doing 

research, outreach and 
attendance at provincial events. 

Send policy drafts to Policy and 
Privacy office for initial 

feedback 

Jan/March 2020 Policy and Privacy Office 
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Share draft revisions with CSU 
and CSU Board and Collectives 

for initial student feedback 

March 2020 CSU/Student reps 

Consult with external expert in 
trauma informed practises 

Feb-March 2020 Myrna McCallum 

Executive Leadership Meeting 
for feedback 

March 18th 2020 President, VP’s 

Further revisions based on 
initial feedback/timeline for 

consultations extended due to 
COVID 

March-June 2020  

Revised draft to Policy and 
Privacy Office for further 
feedback before further 

consultations 

July 2020 Policy and Privacy Office 

Consult with Sechelt and 
Squamish nations/community 

members with support of 
Miranda Huron 

July 2020-Aug 2020 Miranda 

Consult with policy advisory 
group who created first policy in 

2016 

August 2020 Former Advisory Group 
members (who are still working 

at Cap U) 

Consult with various campus 
community members through 

email and online meetings 
including Sechelt and Ts’Zil 

campuses  

July 2020-Aug 2020 Departments under Student 
Success, INSS, CIE, CTE,  

Security, Library, Academic 
Advising, RO, CFA, student 

leader groups etc. 

Senior Leadership Meeting for 
feedback 

August 26th 2020 Senior Leadership/Directors 

Online open consultation where 
people can anonymously submit 

feedback 
 

Posted through Frontlines, links 
on website, through CSU online 

and social media promotion 

August 28th-September 11th 
2020 

 
 

 

All campus community 
members 

Governance and Planning 
Committee Meeting 

September 15th 2020 Leadership Committee 

Board of Governors for final 
approval 

September 29th 2020 Board of Governors 
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Maple 121 – 2055 Purcell Way 
North Vancouver, BC  V7J 3H5 

604.984.4969
604.984.4995 
www.csu.bc.ca

RECEPTION

FAX

WEB

September 15, 2020

Cherian Itty
Chair, Capilano University Board of Governors 
2055 Purcell Way
North Vancouver, BC    V7J 3H5

Re: Capilano Students’ Union Endorses Changes to Sexual Violence Policy

Dear Cherrian and board members,

I am writing on behalf of the Capilano Students’ Union to express our support for the revised Sexual Violence Policy 
that has been recommended to the board of governors for approval. We appreciate the extent to which students, and 
student leaders from the Capilano Students’ Union, were kept involved at every step of this policy’s review process, led 
by Ashley Bentley, student rights and responsibilities advisor.

This policy has undergone significant changes since its initial approval by the board of governors in 2017, and we be-
lieve that these changes are marked improvements. The volume of research into sexual violence in the post-secondary 
space, as well as advocacy and organizing around sexual violence prevention, has seen tremendous growth since the 
government’s introduction of the Sexual Violence and Misconduct Policy Act, and the university’s resulting policy work. 

We appreciate that the revised policy has been developed in consultation with members of our community who are 
disproportionately impacted by sexual violence, and have taken into account recommendations from experts in the 
field such as those from the Our Turn report by Students for Consent Culture, the Calls to Justice in the National Inquiry 
into Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women and Girls, and the Courage to Act report.

We appreciate the recognition of systemic and historical harm contributed by post-secondary institutions, and the in-
herent power imbalances within these institutions which have disproportionate impacts on the safety of students, and 
especially students with identities who may experience intersecting and multiple levels of discrimination.

Clearer language around responsibilities; a commitment to training and education for the university community; and 
changes to options for disclosures all indicate a trauma-informed, accessible, and survivor-centred approach to the revi-
sion of the Sexual Violence Policy and Sexual Violence Procedures.

This is so important.

For survivors, the barriers to reporting sexual violence are often seemingly insurmountable. It’s not just overcoming 
the trauma of experiencing violence that makes it difficult. The culture of minimizing and trivilizing sexual violence can 
create situations where survivors who do decide to disclose are dismissed, inappropriately questioned, or left in the 
dark about their options. The language in a sexual violence policy needs to be this explicit, so that survivors can feel 
certain that their safety — whatever that looks like for them — will be prioritized as they navigate an incredibly difficult 
process.

As an organization that represents populations who are disproportionately likely to experience sexual violence during 
their time at Capilano University — students, generally, and people aged 18 to 34 — the Capilano Students’ Union sup-
ports the revised Sexual Violence Policy and the Sexual Violence Procedures, and we encourage the board of governors 
to approve the revised policy and procedures as proposed in the board package. 

If you have any questions, or wish to discuss the draft policy and procedures with representatives of the Capilano 
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Students’ Union, we would be pleased to meet before the policy and procedures are considered or, at your request, to 
address the board of governors at your meeting of September 29.

Yours sincerely,
Emily Bridge
CSU President

CC: Paul Dangerfield, President & Vice-Chancellor, Capilano University
 Daniel Levangie, Associate Vice-President, Student Success, Capilano University
 Christopher Girodat, Executive Director, Capilano Students’ Union
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 8.2: GOVERNANCE AND PLANNING COMMITTEE – 2020-2021 POLICY PRIORITIES 

PURPOSE:    Approval 
  Information 
  Discussion 

MEETING DATE:  September 29, 2020 

PRESENTER:  Duncan Brown, Governance and Planning Committee Chair 

PURPOSE 

For the Board of Governors to review and approve the proposed Governance and Planning Committee 

2020-2021 Policy Priorities.  

RECOMMENDED MOTION 
THAT the Board of Governors approve the Governance and Planning Committee 2020-2021 Policy 

Priorities.  

BACKGROUND 

Section 4 of the Governance and Planning Committee’s Terms of Reference provides that the 
Governance and Planning Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing board policy and 
making recommendations for developing, updating, or rescinding board policies to the Board for 
approval on matters not covered in the terms of reference for the other Board committees. 

Sections 3(f) and (g) of the Governance and Planning Committee provide that the principal duties of the 
Committee include: 

 overseeing develop and review board policy and make recommendations for developing,
updating, or rescinding board policies to the Board for approval, in accordance with section 4 of
the Committee’s Terms of Reference; and

 annually establishing policy priorities for approval by the Board.

DISCUSSION 

At the September 15, 2020 meeting, the Governance and Planning Committee approved a motion 

recommending the Board approve the following policy priorities for 2020-2021: 

 B.101 Vision, Values, Mission, Goals and Strategic Directions

 B.104 Discontinuance of Programs or Courses

 B.106 Program and Course Review and Approval

 Memo 26 – First Nations Policy Statement

 B.701 Student Code of Conduct Policy

 B.511 Discrimination, Bullying and Harassment Policy
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 B.310 Protected Disclosure (Whistleblower) Policy  

 B.601 Copyright Policy  

 B.301 Naming of Buildings, Spaces & Programs/Guidelines for Recognition/Fundraising/Donors 
Etc. 

  B.305 System for Naming of Buildings 

 Development of a delegation policy 
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 9.1: Fiscal 2020/21 Quarter 2 Forecast 

PURPOSE:    Approval 
  Information 
  Discussion 

MEETING DATE:  September 29, 2020 

PRESENTER:  Patricia Heintzman, Finance and Audit Committee Chair 

MOTIONS  
The following motion is proposed for Board of Governors: 

Motion: THAT the Board of Governors receives for information the Fiscal 2020/21 Quarter 2 Forecast.  

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to provide a financial update to Period 5 ending August 31, 2020 with an 
updated forecast for Quarter 2.  This report was received by the Finance and Audit Committee at their 
September 25, 2020 meeting. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The financial statements for Period 5 ending August 31, 2020 with an updated forecast for quarter 2 is 
included in this report and summarized in the table below. The quarter 2 forecast is a projected deficit of 
approximately $1 million and includes a $.5 million contingency.  Further specifics are provided to highlight 
the changes and the assumptions included in the quarter 2 forecast.   

The quarter 2 forecast is due to the Ministry on October 1st ; AVEST will use the quarter 2 forecast 
submissions from all post-secondary institutions to request a deficit approval from the Minister of Finance 
and permission for institutions to use the accumulated surplus balance to fund deficit. 
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1. Enrollment, tuition revenue and faculty teaching costs

The table below provides a Fiscal year view of enrollment, revenue and faculty teaching costs.  The quarter 2 
forecast results in a net revenue of $35.7 million which is a decrease of $7.4 million compared to Fiscal 
2019/20 and an increase of $5.9 million compared to the quarter 1 forecast.  The figures include summer 
term actual results plus forecasts for Fall 2020 and Spring 2021 terms; additional details are included in this 
report for these two terms.    
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Fall 2020 term 
The graph below summarizes enrollment information for Fall term.  Scenario 4 Pessimistic was used in 
developing the quarter 1 forecast.  The actuals for both domestic and international tuition are higher than 
the scenario 2 moderate estimates but lower than scenario 1 optimistic and Fall 2019 actuals.  

 
The table below provides a snapshot of Fall 2020 term and includes faculty teaching costs. 

 
 

 Enrollment and revenue included in the Q2 forecast is as of September 10th; these figures changed 
minimally at stable enrollment date of September 22nd.  

 Faculty teaching costs: 

 Units were derived from calculations of sections mounted in Banner with a sensibility check against 
previous Fall term.   

 Step 2 rate was used as there will be a mix of faculty staff at the various rates.  The difference in using 
Step 2 vs highest step (used for quarter 1 forecast) is a reduction in cost of $1 million (includes 
benefits). 

 Tuition revenue to teaching costs is at a ratio of 2.25 for quarter 2 forecast. Having a ratio (and range) 
can help the university estimate what the estimated increase in teaching costs will be in relation to 
tuition revenue. 
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Spring 2021 term 
The graph below summarizes enrollment information for Spring 2021 term and includes prior year actuals, 
the four scenario’s used in quarter 1 and two scenarios used for quarter 2 forecast (these scenarios are 
explained below). Scenario 2 was used in the quarter 2 forecast; similar to the Fall term, this scenario for 
both domestic and international tuition is higher than the scenario 2 moderate estimates but lower than 
scenario 1 optimistic and Spring 2020 actuals.  

  

 
The table below provides a snapshot of Spring 2021 term and includes faculty teaching costs. 

 
 Enrollment and revenue included in the Q2 forecast is estimated based on using Fall 2020 enrollment 

numbers and applying: 

 the 2019 decline between Fall term and Spring term (domestic 10.37%; international 3.52%) which 
results in a decline in enrollment for the term of 2,321 and in revenue of $1.7 million. Note the 
decline between the two terms has been growing each year. 

 an additional 5% reduction for both domestic and international due to impacts of the pandemic i.e. 
online fatigue, visa issues. This results in an additional decline in enrollment of 1,391 and in revenue 
of $1.34 million for a total decline from Fall to Spring of 3,712 in enrollment and $3 million in revenue. 

 Faculty teaching costs: 

 Units were kept the same as Spring 2019 based on the impacts to Fall 2020 term (1,983 decline in 
enrollment resulted in 42 decline in sections) 

 Highest rate was used in developing the quarter 2 forecast for conservativism purposes.  The 
difference in using the highest rate and step 2 rate is $752K (includes benefit).   
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2. Ancillary operations 
 

The quarter 2 forecast for ancillary operations is $2.3 million deficit which is an increase of $.24 million from 
the quarter 1 forecasted deficit of $2 million.  The table below shows Parking, Food Services and Continuing 
Studies forecasted deficit increased which is offset by a decline in Student Housing.  There is still a possibility 
of further reductions in revenue for situations such as refunds as a result of a closure in operations. 
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 9.2: STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION, FISCAL 2019/20 

 Approval 
Information 
Discussion 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 

PRESENTER: Patricia Heintzman, Finance and Audit Committee Chair 

MOTION 

The following motion is proposed for the Board of Governors: 

MOTION:  THAT the Board of Governors approve the Statement of Financial Information for the fiscal 
year ending March 31, 2020.    

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the Statement of Financial Information reporting 
requirements as set out in the Financial Information Act.  The Statement of Financial Information for 
the fiscal year ending March 31, 2020 was reviewed by the Finance and Audit Committee at their 
September 25, 2020 meeting.  The Committee passed a motion to recommend approval to the Board.  

BACKGROUND 

The Financial Information Act requires institutions prepare certain financial information within 6 
months of the fiscal year end. The prescribed information includes: 

(a) Statement of assets and liabilities
(b) Operational statement
(c) Schedule of debts
(d) Schedule of guarantee and indemnity agreements
(e) Statement of severance agreements
(f) Schedule of remuneration for board members
(g) Schedule of employee remuneration exceeding $75,000 plus expenses
(h) Schedule of supplier goods and services exceeding $25,000

The first two statements (statement of assets and liabilities and operational statement) are basically the 
audited financial statements along with the management representation letter and the auditors’ report. 
The remaining schedules are not audited but include reconciliations to published information. The 
statements are submitted to the Ministry of Advanced Education, Skills and Training (as the Ministry 
responsible) and, in turn, shared with the legislative library. A copy must be made available by the 
university upon request. 

Once the Board has approved the Statement of Financial Information for the fiscal year ending March 
31, 2020, the submission will be provided to the Board Chair for signature and submission by the 
September 30 deadline.  This final approved report will be posted publicly on the University website, 
similar to other public sector institutions. 
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Statement of Financial Information

March 31, 2020
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September 30, 2020

Ms. Wendy Grondzil

Director, Post‐Secondary Finance

Post Secondary Finance Branch

Ministry of Advanced Education, Skills and Training

PO Box 9134

Stn Prov Govt

Victoria, BC V8W 9B5

Re: Statement of Financial Information 2019/2020

Dear Ms. Grondzil,

Please find enclosed documentation in support of Capilano University's Financial Information Act 

reporting for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2020.

Should you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me at 604‐983‐7569 or 

tallybains@capilanou.ca .

Sincerely,

Tally Bains

Director, Finance

Page 1
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Financial Information Approval

The undersigned represents the Board of Governors of Capilano University and is authorized to sign the 

statements and schedules included in this Statement of Financial Information produced in accordance 

with the Financial Information Act of the Province of British Columbia.

________________________________

Cherian Itty

Chair, Board of Governors

September 29, 2020
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Sch 9.2

Page 129 of 178 
BoG Agenda Package



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Consolidated Financial Statements of 

 

CAPILANO UNIVERSITY 

 

And Independent Auditors’ Report thereon 

 

Year ended March 31, 2020 

 

 

Page 3

Sch 9.2

Page 130 of 178 
BoG Agenda Package



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements, and 

has prepared the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended 

March 31, 2020 in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of Section 23.1 of 

the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia. This 

responsibility includes selecting appropriate accounting principles and methods, and 

making decisions affecting the measurement of transactions in which judgment is 

required. 

In discharging its responsibility for the integrity and fairness of the consolidated financial 

statements, management designs and maintains the necessary accounting systems and 

related internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded 

and that the financial records provide a reliable basis for the preparation of the financial 

statements. 

The Board of Governors of the University carries out its responsibility for review of the 

consolidated financial statements. The Finance and Audit Committee of the Board meets 

with management and the external auditors to discuss the results of audit examinations 

and financial reporting matters. 

These consolidated financial statements have been reported on by KPMG LLP, the 

University’s external auditors appointed by the Board of Governors. The external auditors 

have full access to the Board with and without the presence of management. 

 

 

  

Paul Dangerfield, President 

 

 

 

  

Jacqui Stewart, Vice-President, Finance & Administration 

June 2, 2020 
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KPMG LLP 
PO Box 10426 777 Dunsmuir Street 
Vancouver BC V7Y 1K3 
Canada 
Telephone (604) 691-3000 
Fax (604) 691-3031 

 
 

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.  
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Governors of Capilano University, and 

To the Minister of the Ministry of Advanced Education, Skills and Training, Province of 
British Columbia 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Capilano University (the “Entity”), 

which comprise: 

 the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020 

 the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year then 

ended 

 the consolidated statement of changes in net debt for the year then ended 

 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

 the consolidated statement of remeasurement gains and losses for the year then ended 

 and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies 

(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements as at and for the year ended 

March 31, 2020 of the Entity are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the 

financial reporting provisions of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability 

Act of the Province of British Columbia. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 

standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 

“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our 

auditors’ report.   

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our opinion. 
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Capilano University 
Page 2 

 
 

 

Emphasis of Matter – Financial Reporting Framework 

We draw attention to Note 2(a) to the financial statements which describes the applicable 

financial reporting framework and the significant differences between that financial reporting 

framework and Canadian public sector accounting standards.  

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance 

with the financial reporting provisions of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and 

Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia and for such internal control as 

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 

so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial 

reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we 

exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

We also: 

  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.  

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.  

Page 6
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Capilano University 
Page 3 

 

 

  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in 

the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to 

continue as a going concern. 

  Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Entity to express an opinion on the financial 

statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 
 
 

 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
 
Vancouver, Canada 
June 2, 2020 
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CAPILANO UNIVERSITY 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
 

March 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019 
 

  2020 2019 
(Recast 

- note 18) 

Financial Assets 
 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,371,028 $ 46,823,206 
Investments (note 3) 51,133,700 42,370,818 
Accounts receivable (note 4) 3,244,907 2,826,024 
Other receivables (note 5) 4,100,000 300,000 
Inventories 667,881 723,621 
 

  94,517,516 93,043,669 
 

Liabilities 
 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 6) 22,179,613 17,018,227 
Employee future benefits (note 7(a)) 1,280,800 1,189,100 
Deferred revenue and contributions (note 8) 24,793,980 31,523,958 
Deferred capital contributions (note 9) 46,849,783 49,653,146 

  95,104,176 99,384,431 

 

Net debt (586,660) (6,340,762) 
 

Non-Financial Assets 
 

Endowment investments (note 3) 9,988,908 10,503,329 
Tangible capital assets (note 10) 75,976,077 73,609,550 
Prepaid expenses 1,723,678 245,998 

  87,688,663 84,358,877 
 

Accumulated surplus $ 87,102,003 $ 78,018,115 
 

Accumulated surplus is comprised of: 
Accumulated surplus $ 87,107,752 $ 74,545,247 
Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses) (5,749) 3,472,868 
 

  $ 87,102,003 $ 78,018,115 

 

Contractual obligations (note 12) 
 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
 
 

Approved on behalf of the Board: 
 

 

 

      
Cherian Itty Patricia Heintzman 
Chair, Board of Governors Chair, Finance and Audit Committee 
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CAPILANO UNIVERSITY 
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 
 
Year ended March 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019 
 

  Budget 2020 2020 2019 
  (notes 2(j) (Recast  
  and 14)  - note 18) 

Revenue: 
Province of British Columbia $ 43,231,657 $ 43,645,304 $ 41,738,160 
Tuition fees 57,979,911 68,346,427 54,726,524 
Project and other revenue (note 8(b)) 7,456,057 7,930,376 7,579,595 
Amortization of deferred capital  

contributions (note 9) 3,728,082 3,846,424 4,002,330 
Sales of goods 2,145,000 2,146,300 2,301,220 
Parking, childcare and theatre 2,078,151 2,045,672 2,228,709 
Donations and gifts-in-kind 500,000 2,310,082 953,846 
Investment income 2,370,718 3,554,386 1,980,557 

  119,489,576 133,824,971 115,510,941 
 
Expenses: 

Instruction and student support 71,558,763 71,615,631 64,627,503 
Facilities and institutional support 41,053,079 42,654,348 39,478,248 
Ancillary 6,877,734 7,095,580 6,671,753 

  119,489,576 121,365,559 110,777,504 

 
Annual operating surplus - 12,459,412 4,733,437 
 
Endowment donations received - 103,093 476,033 

 
Annual surplus - 12,562,505 5,209,470 
 
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 74,545,247 74,545,247 69,335,777 
 

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 74,545,247 $ 87,107,752 $ 74,545,247 

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CAPILANO UNIVERSITY 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt 
 
Year ended March 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019 
 

  Budget 2020 2020 2019 
  (notes 2(j)  (Recast 
  and 14) - note 18) 

 
Annual surplus $ - $ 12,562,505 $ 5,209,470 

 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (12,092,814) (10,259,320) (5,349,439) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 7,794,467 7,892,793 7,775,403 

  (4,298,347) (2,366,527) 2,425,964 
 
Acquisition of prepaid expense - (3,339,387) (395,538) 
Use of prepaid expenses - 1,861,707 484,770 

 - (1,477,680) 89,232 

 
Remeasurement gains (losses) (4,298,347) (3,478,617) 1,501,048 
 
Change in endowment investments - 514,421 (840,369) 

 
Decrease (increase) in net debt (4,298,347) 5,754,102 8,385,345 
 
Net debt, beginning of year (6,340,762) (6,340,762) (14,726,107) 
 

Net debt, end of year $ (10,639,109) $ (586,660) $ (6,340,762) 

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CAPILANO UNIVERSITY 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Year ended March 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019 
 

  2020 2019 
(Recast 

- note 18) 

Cash provided by (used in): 
 
Operating activities: 

Annual surplus  $ 12,562,505 $ 5,209,470 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 7,892,793 7,775,403 
Revenue recognized from deferred capital contributions (3,846,424) (4,002,330) 

Changes in non-cash working capital: 
Accounts receivable (418,883) (1,063,152) 
Long term accounts receivable (3,800,000) (300,000) 
Prepaid expenses (1,477,680) 89,232 
Inventories 55,740 26,028 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,161,386 3,439,664 
Employee future benefits  91,700 (58,200) 
Deferred revenue and contributions (6,729,978) 15,010,046 

  9,491,159 26,126,161 
 
Capital activities: 

Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (10,259,320) (5,349,439) 
 
Financing activities: 

Deferred capital contributions received 1,043,061 2,189,361 
 
Investing activities: 

Net purchase of investments (11,727,078) (2,458,816) 

 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (11,452,178) 20,507,267 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 46,823,206 26,315,939 
 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 35,371,028 $ 46,823,206 

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CAPILANO UNIVERSITY 
Consolidated Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses 
 
Year ended March 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019 
 

  2020 2019 
(Recast 

- note 18) 

 
Accumulated remeasurement gains, beginning of year $ 3,472,868 $ 1,971,820 
 
Unrealized gains (losses) attributed to fair value of investments (3,153,405) 1,622,140 
Amounts reclassified to investment income (325,212) (121,092) 

 
Net remeasurement gains (losses) for the year (3,478,617) 1,501,048 
 

Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses) end of year $ (5,749) $ 3,472,868  

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CAPILANO UNIVERSITY 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended March 31, 2020 
 

 

1. Purpose of the University: 

Capilano University (the “University” or “Capilano”) is a post-secondary educational institution 

funded by the Provincial Government of British Columbia. The University is incorporated under 

the amended University Act (Bill 34 was enacted on September 1, 2008). The University is a 

special purpose teaching university and has regional campuses in the Province of 

British Columbia in North Vancouver, Squamish and the Sunshine Coast.  

The University is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act and is exempt from income tax 

under Section 149 of the Income Tax Act. 

These consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial position and results of 

operations and accumulated surplus and cash flows of the University and its controlled 

foundation, the Capilano University Foundation (the “Foundation”). The purpose of the 

Foundation is to raise funds for student financial assistance, capital needs, and program 

development at the University. The Foundation is a registered charity and is exempt from income 

taxes under Section 149 of the Income Tax Act. 
 

2. Significant accounting policies: 

These consolidated financial statements of the University are prepared by management in 

accordance with the basis of accounting described below. Significant accounting policies of the 

University are as follows: 

(a) Basis of accounting: 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 

Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British 

Columbia supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the Province of 

British Columbia Treasury Board.  

The Budget Transparency and Accountability Act requires that the consolidated financial 

statements be prepared in accordance with the set of standards and guidelines that comprise 

generally accepted accounting principles for public sector organizations, or if the Treasury 

Board makes a regulation, the set of standards and guidelines that comprise generally 

accepted accounting principles for public sector organizations as modified by the alternate 

standard or guideline or part thereof adopted in the regulation. 

Regulation 257/2010 requires all tax-payer supported organizations in the Schools, 

Universities, Colleges and Hospitals sectors to adopt Canadian public sector accounting 

standards without any PS4200 elections effective their first fiscal year commencing after 

January 1, 2012.  
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CAPILANO UNIVERSITY 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2020 
 

 

7 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(a) Basis of accounting (continued): 

Regulation 198/2011 requires that restricted contributions received or receivable are to be 

reported as revenue depending on the nature of the restrictions on the use of the funds by 

the contributors as follows: 

(i) Contributions for the purpose of acquiring or developing a depreciable tangible capital 

asset or contributions in the form of a depreciable tangible capital asset are recorded as 

deferred capital contributions and recognized in revenue at the same rate that 

amortization of the related tangible capital asset is recorded. The reduction of the 

deferred capital contributions and the recognition of the revenue are accounted for in the 

fiscal period during which the tangible capital asset is used to provide services. 

(ii) Contributions restricted for specific purposes other than those for the acquisition or 

development of a depreciable tangible capital asset are recorded as deferred 

contributions and recognized in revenue in the year in which the stipulation or restriction 

on the contributions have been met.  

For British Columbia tax-payer supported organizations, these contributions include 

government transfers and externally restricted contributions. 

The accounting policy requirements under Regulation 198/2011 are significantly different 

from the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards which requires that:  

 government transfers that do not contain a stipulation that creates a liability be 

recognized as revenue by the recipient when approved by the transferor and the eligibility 

criteria have been met in accordance with public sector accounting standard PS3410; 

and 

 externally restricted contributions be recognized as revenue in the period in which the 

resources are used for the purpose or purposes specified in accordance with public 

sector accounting standard PS3100. 

As a result, revenue recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and 

Accumulated Surplus and certain related deferred capital contributions would be recorded 

differently under Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

(b) Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with a term to maturity of three 

months or less at the date of purchase. 
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CAPILANO UNIVERSITY 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2020 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Financial instruments: 

Financial instruments are classified into two categories: fair value or amortized cost.  

(i) Fair value category: Portfolio instruments that are quoted in an active market are 

reflected at fair value as at the reporting date. Sales and purchases of investments are 

recorded on the trade date. Transaction costs related to the acquisition of investments 

are recorded as an expense. Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets are 

recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses until 

such time that the financial asset is derecognized due to disposal or impairment. At the 

time of derecognition, the related realized gains and losses are recognized in the 

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus and related balances 

reversed from the Consolidated Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses. 

Unrealized gains and losses on endowment investments where earnings are restricted as 

to use are recorded as deferred contributions and recognized in revenue when disposed 

and when related expenses are incurred. 

These financial instruments measured at fair value held within each investment are 

classified according to a hierarchy which includes three levels, reflecting the reliability of 

the inputs involved in the fair value determination. There different levels are defined as 

follows:  

 Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

 Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that not based on observable market data. 

The University’s investments, except for the donated insurance policy, are all considered 

to be Level 1 financial instruments for which the fair value is determined based on quoted 

prices in active markets. The donated insurance policy is deemed a Level 3 financial 

instrument as the inputs for the asset are not based on observable market data. Changes 

in fair valuation methods or in the availability of market observable inputs may result in a 

transfer between levels. During the year, there were no significant transfers of securities 

between the different levels. 
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CAPILANO UNIVERSITY 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2020 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Financial instruments (continued): 

(ii) Amortized cost category: Investments with specified or determinable maturity dates are 

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses 

are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 

when the financial asset is derecognized due to disposal or impairment. Sales and 

purchases of investments are recorded on the trade date. Transaction costs related to 

the acquisition of investments is included in the cost of the related investments.  

Accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are 

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Any gains, losses or 

interest expense is recorded in the annual surplus depending on the nature of the 

financial liability that gave rise to the gain, loss or expense. Valuation allowances are 

made when collection is in doubt. 

(d) Inventories:  

Inventories held for resale, including books and materials, are recorded at the lower of cost or 

net realizable value. Cost includes the original purchase cost, plus shipping and applicable 

duties. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less any costs to sell. 

(e) Non-financial assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in 

the provision of services. They may have useful lives extending beyond the current year and 

are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

(i) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital asset acquisitions are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are 

directly attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. 

Donated assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. In unusual 

circumstances where fair value cannot be reasonably determined, the tangible capital 

asset would be recognized at nominal value. Land is not amortized as it is deemed to 

have a permanent value. The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, 

excluding land, is amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives 

shown below: 
 

Asset   Rate 
 

Buildings, concrete/steel  40 years 
Buildings, wood frame  20 years 
Leasehold improvements  10 years 
Computer equipment  4 years 
Software 3 years 
Office furniture and equipment 5 years 
Public works 10 years 
Vehicles 10 years 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(e) Non-financial assets (continued): 

(i) Tangible capital assets (continued): 

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive 

use. Borrowing costs, if any, attributable to the construction of tangible capital assets are 

capitalized during the construction period. 

Tangible capital assets are written down to net realizable value when conditions indicate 

that they no longer contribute to the University’s ability to provide goods and services, or 

when the value of future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital assets 

are less than their net book value.  

(ii) Leased tangible capital assets: 

Leases that transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of 

property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are 

accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as 

incurred. As at March 31, 2020, the University did not have leased tangible capital assets 

(2019 - nil). 

(f) Employee future benefits: 

The University and its employees make contributions to the College Pension Plan and 

Municipal Pension Plan, which are multi-employer jointly trusteed plans. These plans are a 

defined benefit plan, providing a pension on retirement based on the member’s age at 

retirement, length of service and highest earnings averaged over five years. Inflation 

adjustments are contingent upon available funding. As the assets and liabilities of the plan 

are not segregated by institution, the plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan and 

any contributions of the University to the plan are expensed as incurred. 

The University also has a defined benefit plan for retired employees and employees on long-

term disability. The University accrues its obligations under this defined benefit plan as the 

employees render the services necessary to earn these benefits and as employees on long-

term disability become eligible for such benefits. Actuarial gains (losses) incurred are 

deferred and recognized into the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated 

Surplus over the estimated average remaining service life of the employee group. The 

effective date of the most recent valuation is December 31, 2018, and the next required 

valuation will be as of December 31, 2021. This actuarial valuation has been extrapolated to 

March 31, 2020. 

The University accrues vacation for employees as earned. However, revenue for funding for 

these is not accrued, as the Province does not provide special funding for vacations and 

retiring allowances. As the majority of employees are paid salaries, management anticipates 

that vacation accruals will be reversed when these employees take their standard vacations 

and that no additional funding will be required above authorized salaries. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(g) Revenue recognition: 

Tuition and student fees and sales of goods and services are reported as revenue at the time 

the services are provided or the products are delivered, and collection is reasonably assured.  

Fees received prior to the year-end where the course is delivered subsequent to the year-end 

are recorded as deferred revenue. 

Project revenue and expenses are recognized as the related activities are performed. The 

zero profit margin method is used when a contract’s financial outcome is not reasonably 

determinable. This method of accounting requires that equal amounts of revenue and 

expense be recognized until the financial outcome of a contract can be reasonably estimated. 

Provision for anticipated losses is made in the period in which they become evident. 

Unrestricted donations and grants are recorded as revenue when receivable if the amounts 

can be estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Pledges from donors are recorded as 

revenue when payment is received by the University or the transfer of property is completed. 

Restricted donations and grants are reported as revenue depending on the nature of the 

restrictions on the use of the funds by the contributors as follows: 

(i) Contributions for the purpose of acquiring or developing a depreciable tangible capital 

asset or in the form of a depreciable tangible capital asset, in each case for use in 

providing services, are recorded and referred to as deferred capital contributions and 

recognized in revenue at the same rate that amortization of the tangible capital asset is 

recorded. The reduction of the deferred capital contributions and the recognition of the 

revenue are accounted for in the fiscal period during which the tangible capital asset is 

used to provide services. 

(ii) Contributions restricted for specific purposes other than for those to be held in perpetuity 

or the acquisition or development of a depreciable tangible capital asset are recorded as  

deferred contributions and recognized in revenue in the year in which the stipulation or 

restriction on the contribution have been met.  

(iii) Contributions restricted to be retained in perpetuity, allowing only the investment income 

earned thereon to be spent are recorded as endowment donations received on the 

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus for the portion to be 

held in perpetuity and as deferred contributions for the investment income earned 

thereon. 

Investment income includes interest recorded on an accrual basis and dividends recorded as 

declared, realized gains and losses on the sale of investment and write downs on 

investments where the loss in value is determined to be other-than-temporary. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(h) Contaminated sites: 

A liability for contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive use and the 

following criteria are met: 

(i) An environmental standard exists; 

(ii) Contamination exceeds the environmental standards; 

(iii) The University is directly responsible or accepts responsibility; 

(iv) It is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 

(v) A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 

The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including 

operation, maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy 

for a contaminated site. 

(i) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting 

framework described in note 2(a) requires management to make estimates and assumptions. 

These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and 

related disclosures. Key areas where management has made estimates and assumptions 

include those related to the useful lives of tangible capital assets, accrued liabilities and 

employee future benefits payable. Where actual results differ from these estimates and 

assumptions, the impact will be recorded in future periods when the difference becomes 

known. 

(j) Budget figures: 

Budget figures have been provided for comparative purposes and have been derived from 

the consolidated budget approved by the Board of Governors of the University on April 16, 

2019. This budget is reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated 

Surplus and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt.  

(k) Foreign currency translation: 

The University’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar. Transactions in foreign currencies 

are translated into Canadian dollars at the exchange rate in effect on the transaction date. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are reflected in the financial 

statements in equivalent Canadian dollars at the exchange rate in effect on the year-end 

date.  
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3. Financial instruments: 

Financial assets, non-financial assets recorded at fair value are comprised of the following:  
 

 2020 2019 

 

Level 1: 
Fixed income investments $ 22,202,010 $ 23,974,880 
Canadian equity investments 15,972,008 16,199,604 
Foreign equity investments 12,217,290 12,308,663 
Guaranteed Investment Certificate 10,340,300 - 

  60,731,608 52,483,147 
 
Less: Endowment investments (9,988,908) (10,503,329) 

  50,742,700 41,979,818 
Level 3: 

Donated insurance policy 391,000 391,000 
 

Investments $ 51,133,700 $ 42,370,818  

 

4. Accounts receivable: 
 

  2020 2019 

 
Accounts receivable $ 4,433,206 $ 3,797,092 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,188,299) (971,068) 
 

  $ 3,244,907 $ 2,826,024 

 

5. Other receivables: 
 

  2020 2019 

 
Quest University (a) $ 2,100,000 $ 300,000 
Ruby Lake Lagoon Society (b) 2,000,000 - 
 

  $ 4,100,000 $ 300,000 

 

(a) Quest University receivable: 

Capilano and Quest University (“Quest”) entered into an agreement to explore opportunities 

for Capilano to use Quest's campus and facilities to provide programs in the Sea-to-Sky 

Corridor. During the year, Capilano provided a loan to Quest for $2.1 million bearing interest 

at 4% per annum.  Capilano executed and registered several stopgap documents with the 

BC Land Titles and Survey Office and obtained a priority agreement with the first mortgagee 

to favour repayment for Capilano. 
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5. Other receivables (continued): 

(b) Ruby Lake Lagoon Society receivable: 

The Ruby Lake Lagoon Society (the “Society”) is a non-profit society that works to preserve 

and enhance the natural habitat and wildlife of the Ruby Lake Lagoon and the Sunshine 

Coast. The Society operates the Pender Harbour Ocean Discovery Station (“PODS”) and 

envisions this facility to conduct research and to monitor the surrounding marine and 

freshwater ecosystems and enhance the aquatic biodiversity in the harbour area.   

The Foundation received a $2.0 million donation to support educational and research efforts 

on the Sunshine Coast and donated these funds to the University. The University and the 

Society entered into a partnership to collaborate in the development of PODS to support the 

University and students to participate in educational and research initiatives on the Sunshine 

Coast. The University provided an interest free loan of $2.0 million to the Society that is 

secured by a first mortgage against the Society's property. The Society commits to providing 

the University access to facilities, programs, services and recognition that will be used to 

offset the outstanding loan. It is anticipated that the construction of the new PODS facility will 

be completed in 2022 and the partnership and loan will be fully satisfied in 2037. 
 

6. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: 
 

  2020 2019 

 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 9,435,820 $ 6,021,950 
Salaries and benefits payable 8,885,599 7,808,328 
Accrued vacation pay 3,858,194 3,187,949 
 

  $ 22,179,613 $ 17,018,227 

 

7. Employee future benefits: 

(a) Benefits for employees on long-term disability and faculty retirees: 

Information about liabilities for the University’s employee benefit plans is as follows:  
 

  2020 2019 

 
Accrued benefit obligation balance, beginning of year $ 1,082,800 $ 1,194,000 
Interest cost 2,100 3,900 
Employee contributions 314,700 386,900 
Expected benefit payments (311,600) (387,800) 
Immediate recognition of continuation of  

benefits for disabled employees 100,900 (53,500) 
Actuarial loss (gain) 5,300 (60,700) 
 

Accrued benefit obligation balance, end of year $ 1,194,200 $ 1,082,800 
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7. Employee future benefits (continued): 

(a) Benefits for employees on long-term disability and faculty retirees (continued): 

Information about liabilities for the University’s employee benefit plans is as follows 

(continued):  
 

  2020 2019 

 
Accrued benefit obligation $ 1,194,200 $ 1,082,800 
Unamortized actuarial gain 86,600 106,300 
 

Accrued benefit liability $ 1,280,800 $ 1,189,100 

 

As the employee future benefit liability for long-term disability is an event-driven obligation, 

the expense (recovery) recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and 

Accumulated Surplus is comprised only of the immediate recognition of the liability. 

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the University’s accrued benefit 

obligation are as follows: 
 

  2020 2019 

 
Obligation discount rate 1.78% 2.45% 
Estimated average remaining service life 9 years 9 years 
 

 

(b) Provincial pension plans:  

The University and its employees contribute to the College Pension Plan and Municipal 

Pension Plan (the “Plans”), jointly trusteed pension plans. The Board of Trustees for these 

plans represent plan members and employers and are responsible for the management of 

the pension plan including investment of the assets and administration of benefits. The 

pension plans are multi-employer contributory pension plans. Basic pension benefits provided 

are based on a formula. The College Pension Plan has about 15,000 active members from 

college senior administration and instructional staff and approximately 8,000 retired 

members. The Municipal Pension Plan has about 205,000 active members.  

The actuarial valuation for the College Pension Plan as at August 31, 2018 indicated a 

$303 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits. The actuarial valuation for the 

Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2018 indicated a $2,866 million funding surplus 

for basic pension benefits.  
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7. Employee future benefits (continued): 

(b) Provincial pension plans (continued):  

Employers participating in the Plans record their pension expense as the amount of employer 

contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This 

is because the Plans records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the Plans in 

aggregate with the result that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the 

obligation, assets and cost to individual employers participating in the Plans. 

The University records pension expense as cash contributions to the Plans are made. During 

the year, the University contributed $5,507,737 (2019 - $5,005,371) to the above plans. 
 

8. Deferred revenue and contributions: 

Deferred revenue and contributions consists of deferred tuition fees, deferred government 

contributions and project and other revenue, deferred restricted donations and deferred restricted 

investment income as follows: 
 

  2020 2019 

 
Tuition fees $ 16,420,949 $ 23,430,887 
Deferred government contributions and 

project and other revenue (a) and (b) 3,110,348 2,157,950 
Restricted donations and investment income (c) 5,262,683 5,935,121 
 

  $ 24,793,980 $ 31,523,958 

 

(a) Included in deferred government contributions and project and other revenue is the following: 
 

  2020 2019 

 
Provincial contributions: 

Beginning of year $ 848,115 $ 728,756 
Amounts received during the year 3,718,749 2,691,981 
Recognized as revenue (2,769,162) (2,572,622) 
 

  $ 1,797,702 $ 848,115  

 

Operating grants from the Province of British Columbia of $40,876,142 (2019 - $39,165,538) 

were immediately recognized as revenue in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and 

Accumulated Surplus when received. Amounts recognized as revenue are included in the 

Province of British Columbia revenue in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and 

Accumulated Surplus. 
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8. Deferred revenue and contributions (continued): 

(b) Included in deferred government contributions and project and other revenue is the following 

related to contributions revenue: 
 

  2020 2019 

 
Non-provincial contributions: 

Beginning of year $ 1,309,835 $ 1,588,159 
Amounts received during the year 7,933,187 7,301,271 
Recognized as revenue (7,930,376) (7,579,595) 
 

  $ 1,312,646 $ 1,309,835  

 

(c) Restricted donations and investment income is comprised of the following amounts from non-

government organizations:  
 

  2020 2019 

 
Beginning of year $ 5,935,121 $ 5,070,165 
Amounts received during the year 3,532,528 2,340,781 
Recognized as revenue (4,204,966) (1,475,825) 
 

  $ 5,262,683 $ 5,935,121  

 
 

9. Deferred capital contributions: 

Contributions for capital are referred to as deferred capital contributions. Amounts are recognized 

as revenue over the useful life of the asset. Treasury Board provided direction on accounting 

treatment as disclosed in note 2(a). Changes in the deferred capital contributions balance are as 

follows: 
 

  2020 2019 

 
Balance, beginning of year $ 49,653,146 $ 51,466,115 
Contributions received during the year  1,043,061 2,189,361 
Revenue recognized from deferred capital contributions (3,846,424) (4,002,330) 
 

Balance, end of year $ 46,849,783 $ 49,653,146  
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9. Deferred capital contributions (continued): 

Included in the above is the following related to government and non-government organizations:  
 

  2020 2019 

 
Provincial contributions: 

Beginning of year $ 35,660,618 $ 36,751,991 
Amounts received during the year 1,043,061 2,189,361 
Recognized as revenue (3,249,825) (3,280,734) 
 

 $ 33,453,854 $ 35,660,618  

 
 

  2020 2019 

 
Federal contributions: 

Beginning of year $ 13,817,523 $ 14,239,119 
Recognized as revenue (421,595) (421,596) 
 

 $ 13,395,928 $ 13,817,523  

 
 

  2020 2019 

 
Other contributions: 

Beginning of year $ 175,005 $ 475,005 
Recognized as revenue (175,004) (300,000) 
 

 $ 1 $ 175,005  

 

Revenue is recognized as amortization of deferred capital contributions on the Consolidated 

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus. 
 

10. Tangible capital assets: 
 

 Balance, Additions  Balance, 

 March 31, net of  March 31, 

Cost 2019 Transfers Disposals 2020 

 
Land $ 10,000,370 $ - $ - $ 10,000,370 
Buildings 117,168,942 1,309,406 - 118,478,348 
Leasehold improvements 60,830 3,454,681 - 3,515,511 
Computer equipment 12,367,301 2,715,877 - 15,083,178 
Other furniture and equipment 12,803,867 2,592,564 - 15,396,431 
Public works 2,192,949 - - 2,192,949 
Software 1,903,434 186,792 - 2,090,226 
Vehicles 595,231 - - 595,231 
 

Total $ 157,092,924 $ 10,259,320 $ - $ 167,352,244 
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10. Tangible capital assets (continued): 
 

 Balance,   Balance, 

Accumulated March 31,   March 31, 

amortization 2019 Additions Disposals 2020 

 
Land $ - $ - $ - $ - 
Buildings 64,068,611 3,064,895 - 67,133,506 
Leasehold improvements - 116,090 - 116,090 
Computer equipment 8,440,711 2,289,141 - 10,729,852 
Other furniture and equipment 8,474,634 1,829,097 - 10,303,731 
Public works 962,537 184,381 - 1,146,918 
Software 1,310,199 355,008 - 1,665,207 
Vehicles 226,682 54,181 - 280,863 
 

Total $ 83,483,374 $ 7,892,793 $ - $ 91,376,167 

 

 

 March 31,   March 31, 

Net book value 2019   2020 
 
Land $ 10,000,370     $ 10,000,370 
Buildings 53,100,331   51,344,842 
Leasehold improvements 60,830   3,399,421 
Computer equipment 3,926,590   4,353,326 
Other furniture and equipment 4,329,233   5,092,700 
Public works 1,230,412   1,046,031 
Software 593,235   425,019 
Vehicles 368,549   314,368 
 

Total $ 73,609,550 $ 75,976,077 

 

 

11. Financial risk management: 

The University has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: credit risk, 

market risk and liquidity risk. 

The Board of Governors ensures that the University has identified its major risks and ensures that 

management monitors and controls them. 

(a) Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the University if a customer or counterparty to a 

financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Such risks arise principally from 

certain financial assets held by the University consisting of cash, investments, accounts 

receivable and endowment investments. The University assesses these financial assets on a 

continuous basis for any amounts that are not collectible or realizable. 
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11. Financial risk management (continued): 

(b) Market risk: 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, including interest rates, will affect 

University’s income. The objective of market risk management is to control market risk 

exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return on risk. The University 

manages market risk by adoption of an investment policy and adherence to this policy by an 

investment manager. Investments are in pooled funds in a diversified portfolio in accordance 

with the University’s investment policy. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. 

It is management’s opinion that the University is not exposed to significant market risk arising 

from its financial instruments. 

(c) Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the University will not be able to meet its financial obligations as 

they become due.  

The University manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and forecasted cash 

flows from operations and anticipated investing and financing activities to ensure, as far as 

possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both 

normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to 

the University’s reputation. 
 

12. Contractual obligations: 

The nature of the University’s activities results in multi-year contracts and obligations whereby the 

University is committed to make future payments. Significant contractual obligations related to 

facilities, security, parking and janitorial services that can be reasonably estimated are as follows: 

 

 

2021  $ 3,817,000 
2022  3,557,900 
2023  1,901,900 
2024  962,700 
 

    $ 10,239,500 
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13. Expenses by object:

The following is a summary of expenses by object:

2020 2019 

Amortization of tangible capital assets $ 7,892,793 $ 7,775,403 
Buildings and grounds maintenance 6,960,709 6,300,859 
Cost of goods sold 1,535,478 1,694,878 
Other operating expenses 25,655,016 23,829,210 
Salaries and benefits 77,486,633 69,131,525 
Student support activities 1,834,930 2,045,629 

$ 121,365,559 $ 110,777,504 

14. Budget figures:

Budget figures have been provided for comparative purposes and have been derived from the

consolidated budget approved by the Board of Governors of the University on April 16, 2019. The

budget is reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus and

the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt and is reconciled to the Consolidated

Statement of Operations as follows:

Statement of 

Operations 

and 

Approved Accumulated 

Budget Reallocation Surplus 

Expenses by object: 

Amortization of tangible capital assets $ 7,794,467 $ (7,794,467) $ -
Expenses 31,318,372 (31,318,372) -
Salaries and benefits 80,376,737 (80,376,737) -

119,489,576 (119,489,576) - 

Expenses by function: 
Instruction and student support - 71,558,763 71,558,763
Facility and institutional support - 41,053,079 41,053,079
Ancillary - 6,877,734 6,877,734

- 119,489,576 119,489,576

$ 119,489,576 $ - $   119,489,576
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15. Impact of COVID-19: 

In March 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health 

Organization. The situation is dynamic and the ultimate duration and magnitude of the impact on 

the economy and our operations are not known at this time.  

At the time of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the University has 

experienced the following indicators of financial implications and undertaken activities in relation 

to the COVID-19 pandemic: 

 effective March 18, 2020, the University moved to a primarily remote (online) instructional 

delivery model. 

 effective March 20, 2020, the University implemented a remote working from home model for 

employees able to do so and implemented social distancing policies for employees that 

remain on campus. 

At this time these factors present uncertainty over future cash flows, may cause significant 

changes to the assets or liabilities and may have a significant impact on future operations. An 

estimate of the financial effect is not practicable at this time. 
 

16. Related party transactions: 

The University is related through common control to all Province of British Columbia ministries, 

agencies, school districts, health authorities, colleges, universities and crown corporations. 

Transactions with these related parties, unless disclosed otherwise, are considered to be in the 

normal course of operations and are recorded at their exchange amounts, which is the amount of 

consideration established and agreed to between the University and the related parties. 
 

17. Comparative information: 

Certain comparative information has been reclassified to conform with the financial statement 

presentation adopted in the current year. 
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18. Recast of comparative information: 

During the year, the University determined that an adjustment was required in its comparative 

information to correct the accounting treatment of unrealized gains and losses on endowment 

investments in these consolidated financial statements. This change has been recorded 

retroactively and accordingly, the 2019 comparative financial information has been recast as 

follows: 
 

  As previously  As 

  stated Adjustment recast 

 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position: 
Accumulated surplus $ 70,269,709 $ 4,275,538 $ 74,545,247 
Accumulated remeasurement gains 7,748,406 (4,275,538) 3,472,868 

  78,018,115 -  78,018,115 

Consolidated Statement of Operations  

and Accumulated Surplus: 

Investment income 1,087,340 893,217 1,980,557 
 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt: 

Annual surplus 4,316,253 893,217 5,209,470 

Remeasurement gains (losses) 2,394,265 (893,217)  1,501,048 
 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows: 

Cash from operating activities 25,232,944  893,217  26,126,161 

Cash from investing activities (1,565,599) (893,217) (2,458,816) 
 

Consolidated Statement of Remeasurement 

Gains and Losses: 

Accumulated remeasurement gains, 

beginning of year 5,354,141 (3,382,321) 1,971,820 

Unrealized gains attributed to fair 

value of investment 2,546,064 (923,924) 1,622,140 

Amounts reclassified to investment income (151,799) 30,707 (121,092) 
 

 7,748,406 (4,275,538) 3,472,868 
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Capilano University

Statement of Financial Information

For the Year Ended March 31, 2020

Schedule of Debts
Capilano University does not have any existing long‐term debt.

Schedule of Guarantee Agreements
Capilano University has not given any guarantee or indemnities under the Guarantees and Indemnities 

Regulations.

Statement of Severance Agreements
There were eight severance agreements under which payment commenced between Capilano 

University and its unionized and non‐unionized employees during fiscal year 2019/2020.  These 

agreements represent from 2 weeks to eighteen months of compensation.
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Name Position Term Ended Expenses

Amlani, Ash Order‐in‐Council

Brown, Duncan Order‐in‐Council 46$                      

Dhillon, R. Paul Order‐in‐Council

Fung, David Chancellor

Heintzman, Patricia Order‐in‐Council

Itty, Cherian Chair, Order‐in‐Council 18                        

Kim, Soon Chair, Order‐in‐Council Ended July 31, 2019

Petrozzi, Andrew Order‐in‐Council

So, Rodger Order‐in‐Council

Thomas, Carleen Order‐in‐Council Ended July 31, 2019

Dangerfield, Paul J.  President & Vice‐Chancellor

Fleming, Michael Faculty Member

Mahood, Aurelea Faculty Member Ended August 12, 2019

Matson, Mila Staff Member

Raja, Majid Faculty Member

Dapasquier, Grace Student Member

Gaudette, Emily Student Member Ended June 30, 2019

Merali, Hassan Student Member Ended June 30, 2019

North, Layne Student Member

64$                      

Chancellor and order‐in‐council members

Board of Governors Remuneration and Expenses

President, faculty and staff members

Student members

No remuneration has been paid to any member of the Board of Governors for Board activity.  The 

remuneration and expenses of the President, Faculty or Staff who are also members of the Board, are listed 

in the Schedule of Employee Remuneration and Expenses.
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Capilano University

Statement of Financial Information

For the Year Ended March 31, 2020

Name Remuneration Expenses

Acimovic, Milica 95,164$               ‐$                     

Aitken, Carol 89,499                 1,828                  

Alards‐Tomalin, Douglas William 80,767                 ‐                       

Alderson, Lucy 79,626                 227                      

Alekson, Tania 95,145                 2,996                  

Alkenbrack, Martha 94,378                 ‐                       

Amos, David 93,589                 781                      

Anderson, Marsha 95,988                 ‐                       

Anderson, Nathan 95,191                 127                      

Arce Gonzalez, Enrique 107,056               1,624                  

Argatoff, Lorraine 119,576               ‐                       

Ashley, Sean Matthew 93,159                 486                      

Atapour, Mahshid 95,366                 970                      

Bailly, Leah Jean 82,569                 ‐                       

Bains, Tally 131,425               3,759                  

Ball, Brian 79,325                 4,422                  

Banks, Cyndi 128,752               9,369                  

Barber, Gillian 95,164                 201                      

Baryshnikova, Olga 81,177                 ‐                       

Baxter, Deanna 103,485               ‐                       

Beaver, Dwayne 94,910                 ‐                       

Beltran‐Sellitti, Elaine deFatima 79,626                 ‐                       

Bischoff, Mary Jo 77,864                 ‐                       

Black, Fiona 97,558                 10,680                

Black, Julia 107,684               2,467                  

Blades, Ryan 122,815               7,325                  

Blythe, Scott 106,562               2,804                  

Bottrill, Chris 128,039               95,364                

Bowen, Jordy 93,297                 94                         

Boyle, Bettina 87,958                 1,773                  

Bracewell, Maureen 95,182                 1,117                  

Bradley, Patricia 78,934                 278                      

Brand, Richard 107,083               2,500                  

Burke, Charlotte 80,801                 ‐                       

Burrows, Jared 95,886                 186                      

Cano, Cristian 77,381                 53,473                

Employee Remuneration and Expenses
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Cant, Annabella 109,458               1,017                  

Carlos, Roberto 92,564                 1,463                  

Carmack, Elizabeth Sarah 81,533                 ‐                       

Carnovale, Chris 95,164                 6,004                  

Castagne, Michel Roger 93,159                 ‐                       

Cederholm, Ann‐Marie 95,698                 ‐                       

Chan, Ching Kiu 75,106                 ‐                       

Chau, Camlon 95,191                 ‐                       

Chin, Eunice Hannah 85,551                 ‐                       

Christie‐Bell, Susan 109,286               ‐                       

Clarke, Jacqueline 78,307                 1,364                  

Colliss, Sara 89,768                 1,274                  

Cook, Graham 106,364               2,592                  

Cresswell, Ian 97,086                 ‐                       

Crowther, Gillian 95,191                 ‐                       

Cunningham, Aaron 87,641                 ‐                       

Cusanelli, Antonio 107,056               ‐                       

D'almeida, Claudia 91,858                 ‐                       

Damborg, Gillian 93,281                 4,706                  

Dangerfield, Paul 217,238               32,576                

Davies, John 95,136                 ‐                       

Davies, Rick 77,925                 ‐                       

De Jesus, Ramel 80,424                 ‐                       

De Jong Westman, Marja 95,136                 ‐                       

de Kraker, Michiel 96,138                 15                         

Demopoulos, William 93,042                 8,092                  

Dhammi, Dilbagh 95,164                 ‐                       

Diening, Trudy 82,310                 2,519                  

Dignum, Tracy 92,059                 2,597                  

Dixon, Benjamin Frank 95,576                 ‐                       

Dodds, Christine 95,164                 4,297                  

Dotzeva, Teodora 96,960                 302                      

Dritmanis, Susan 96,138                 ‐                       

Dubord, Denis 102,751               ‐                       

Duke, Lara 78,158                 4,358                  

Eby, Andrea 85,548                 5,183                  

El Rayess, Sara Moufida 82,735                 ‐                       

Elfert, Miriam 81,317                 547                      

El‐Hanany, Efrat 75,736                 ‐                       

Enwright, William 96,380                 524                      

Fairlie, John 96,122                 844                      

Farr, Roger 82,454                 ‐                       

Fessenden, Bradley 83,321                 ‐                       
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Fitzgerald, Jennifer 82,993                 2,176                  

Fleming, Michael 96,138                 303                      

Flower, Thomas 80,028                 ‐                       

Fossett, Brenda 108,030               3,221                  

Fung, Kenny 92,593                 817                      

Furby, Robin 105,705               2,847                  

Gallagher, Stephen 116,183               ‐                       

Ganter, Brian 116,166               986                      

Garden, Jennifer 76,682                 2,023                  

Gardiner, Dwight 83,614                 5,217                  

Garland, Adam 90,839                 2,500                  

Geary, David William 96,593                 ‐                       

Genoway, Noel 95,164                 ‐                       

Gervan, Ted 144,675               1,301                  

Ghaseminejad, Amir 102,564               ‐                       

Ghoreishi, Mohammad 90,900                 ‐                       

Gilker, Colin 92,906                 991                      

Girardi, Alberta 80,594                 ‐                       

Gjerdalen, Greig 95,191                 255                      

Gliatis, Panagiota (Pam) 100,128               ‐                       

Gloor, Catherine 83,272                 68                         

Godwyn, Martin 95,164                 ‐                       

Goerzen, Christy 93,811                 202                      

Gopaul, Nila 95,164                 ‐                       

Grant, Wendy 95,950                 3,271                  

Gratham, Chris 95,164                 ‐                       

Greenberg, Charles 95,890                 ‐                       

Gruber, Paul 96,960                 6,981                  

Gunness, Michelle 84,631                 ‐                       

Hale, Alison 110,029               506                      

Hall, Karin 91,200                 2,432                  

Hallman, Jocelyn 80,633                 ‐                       

Hamer, Alyssa 77,920                 192                      

Hamilton, Edward 95,164                 225                      

Han, Angeline 92,211                 176                      

Hardcastle, Christopher 95,886                 ‐                       

Harrison, Laura Christine 95,164                 ‐                       

Harrison, Nicholas 95,164                 ‐                       

Hauka, David 95,164                 ‐                       

Hazeri‐Chabok, Shaya 87,963                 853                      

Herrmann, Mathius 95,164                 ‐                       

Hill, Charlene 81,262                 184                      

Hill, Richard 95,164                 4,213                  
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Hillebrand, Darcie 95,191                 ‐                       

Howell, Derek 79,213                 220                      

Hughes, Wayne 95,191                 ‐                       

Hunter, Holly 93,505                 ‐                       

Hurlbut, Cheryl 97,290                 1,620                  

Ingham, Jennifer 126,437               5,400                  

Ingram, Heather 111,774               413                      

Isola, Rita 102,774               ‐                       

Jagger, Joanna Kristinn 99,094                 1,214                  

Jamison, Debbie 107,770               134                      

Jantzen, Roy 89,545                 905                      

Jessen, Violet 96,258                 3,641                  

Jiang, Shana 76,920                 ‐                       

Johanson, Reg 79,807                 5,533                  

Johnson, Patricia 85,075                 ‐                       

Johnstone, Chad 84,718                 4,875                  

Johnstone, Douglas 95,164                 ‐                       

Jones, David 79,308                 ‐                       

Jorgenson, Rachelle Noelle 95,164                 ‐                       

Jung, Carrie 95,469                 ‐                       

Kaldestad, Stephen 96,138                 ‐                       

Kamal, Nazmi Ghassan 88,178                 ‐                       

Kendall, Nicholas 94,499                 336                      

Kennedy, Graeme 76,855                 ‐                       

Kiamanesh, Mitra 95,155                 4,229                  

Kim, Bo Sun 93,186                 ‐                       

Kind, Sylvia 96,099                 6,240                  

King, Stephen Michael 96,655                 ‐                       

Kiraly, Michael 79,625                 ‐                       

Kirk, David 114,276               290                      

Knudson, Michael 149,925               ‐                       

Kocher, Laurie 92,324                 1,187                  

Kolytchev, Leonid 80,491                 ‐                       

Kramer, Cheryl 96,138                 195                      

Kummen, Kathleen 107,056               5,915                  

Kwok, Tony 82,087                 477                      

Labossiere, Danielle  101,896               2,556                  

Lajeunesse, Lisa 103,071               2,500                  

Lam, Ki Fung Keith 94,156                 ‐                       

Lau, John 76,936                 854                      

Lawrence, Mark 100,968               638                      

Le Page, Matthew 82,559                 ‐                       

Lebeau, Michelle 92,988                 947                      
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Levangie, Daniel 109,386               5,941                  

Lewis, Kent 95,164                 46                         

Loken, Tania Margaret  96,872                 423                      

Lucas, Nanci 105,751               ‐                       

Lutgens, Danielle 76,740                 ‐                       

MacDonald, Sorcha 77,639                 223                      

MacKay, Laura 106,838               14,774                

MacLeod Williams, Heather Jane 79,368                 ‐                       

Mahboubi, Pouyan 130,052               8,455                  

Mahood, Aurelea 104,580               4,638                  

Malenstyn, Andrea 95,191                 ‐                       

Manuel, Doreen 118,581               5,370                  

Markwick, Michael 83,994                 658                      

Martin, Brad 130,372               1,439                  

Mason, Michelle 96,948                 1,326                  

Mathur, Neil 96,507                 ‐                       

Matthews, Karen 87,418                 14                         

Mattson, Mila 76,693                 359                      

McFadden, Erin 88,971                 1,319                  

McLeod, Kim 75,635                 815                      

Mcmillan, Paul 95,164                 388                      

McNeil, Alison 95,164                 2,678                  

Meitz, Ann 80,890                 ‐                       

Michaud, Matthew Phillip 83,320                 ‐                       

Miles, Victoria 109,062               5,473                  

Minkus, Kim 91,915                 408                      

Moffatt, Lauren  81,913                 ‐                       

Molendyk, John 101,137               ‐                       

Molson, Michael 95,137                 ‐                       

Moscrip, Kathryn 107,556               1,515                  

Moses, Hilary Anne 82,315                 132                      

Muckle, Robert 95,164                 2,713                  

Muench, Corey 95,164                 2,773                  

Nelson, Lesley 86,488                 ‐                       

Nesselroad, Jennifer 98,861                 6,613                  

Neubauer, Nadja  78,564                 418                      

Newfield, Todd 95,164                 ‐                       

Ng, Nancy 90,237                 7,128                  

Nichol, Melissa 89,735                 ‐                       

Nickolichuk, Natalie Rae 95,191                 ‐                       

Nikolov, Gueorgui 95,763                 ‐                       

Nowlan, Nancy 107,290               ‐                       

Oceguera Silva, Jorge 95,950                 ‐                       
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O'Duinn, Fiacre Miceal 95,164                 ‐                       

Ogawa, Julia 78,356                 67                         

Okun, Karen 79,308                 5,587                  

Pack, Bradshaw 89,988                 2,500                  

Penhall, John Wesley 100,743               ‐                       

Perro, Donald 96,138                 4,041                  

Perry, Donna 95,698                 ‐                       

Pop, Mirela 94,734                 2,826                  

Prange, Laurie 132,430               207                      

Prud'homme‐Genereux, Annie 121,577               2,873                  

Queree, Claire 93,380                 ‐                       

Raja, Majid Fakhar  90,742                 2,234                  

Raycraft, Jane 95,950                 10,553                

Reyes, Carlos 93,525                 ‐                       

Robinson, Erin Dianna 79,039                 ‐                       

Romeo‐Gilbert, Susan 96,138                 114                      

Ross, Jeff 95,560                 597                      

Ross, Sheila May 95,511                 ‐                       

Rowsell, Blake Russell 78,964                 ‐                       

Rudolph, Gordon 115,376               5,459                  

Rurak, Debra Alice 91,572                 ‐                       

Sale, Adam 94,696                 743                      

Sauer, Deborah 101,748               ‐                       

Savjord, Toran 158,363               9,767                  

Schachter, Deborah 120,479               8,222                  

Schoen, Carol 95,814                 127                      

Schreader, Cheryl 106,984               727                      

Schuster, Robert 95,164                 806                      

Seekins, Sandra 96,283                 ‐                       

Sellers, Wade 96,960                 3,374                  

Seyedi, Elham 92,772                 201                      

Shafai, Azita 95,950                 1,037                  

Silva, Francisco 96,154                 16,698                

Simmons, Craig 96,138                 660                      

Simpson, Carey Lynn 89,455                 ‐                       

Skapski, Natalia 90,387                 8,413                  

Smith, Tia 102,256               1,184                  

Sohi, Sukhi 111,656               496                      

Stern, Carolyn 81,352                 2,500                  

Stewart, Jacqui 170,957               1,913                  

Stewart, Kymberley 100,252               782                      

Stock, Richard 102,750               2,059                  

Stone, Anne 84,898                 ‐                       
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Stretch, Carole 76,229                 1,858                  

Styles, Laureen 173,298               18,605                

Surjanovic, Ivan 95,164                 ‐                       

Sutherland, Sara 93,042                 1,784                  

Sylvester, Glen 95,886                 856                      

Taft, Kathryn     95,164                 ‐                       

Takei, Masaji 88,717                 1,954                  

Tanimura, Cheiko 107,672               ‐                       

Tarry, Hammond 101,417               ‐                       

Thiessen, Calvin Lloyd 97,995                 ‐                       

Thoma, Michael 107,556               1,361                  

Toma, Cristian 94,514                 872                      

Tomberli, Bruno 93,794                 300                      

Toor, Rajrupinder 82,110                 439                      

Turner, Brad 78,802                 186                      

Twiss, Diana 95,164                 1,252                  

Valladares, Halia 92,570                 12,652                

Van Luven, William 96,738                 ‐                       

Vandereyk, David 76,318                 ‐                       

Vanderyagt, Julie 98,734                 6,060                  

Vaughan, Mark 101,137               187                      

Villalba, Luis 95,886                 ‐                       

Wang, Jo 95,164                 ‐                       

Waters, Janet 81,132                 305                      

Watson , Lydia 87,236                 ‐                       

Watson, Judith 95,511                 1,005                  

Wayte, Rebecca 78,331                 1,981                  

Wells, Stephanie 108,224               15,822                

Wharton, Kari 97,878                 69                         

Whitworth, Dawn 88,159                 2,188                  

Wight, Christine 93,592                 ‐                       

Wilkes, Kristin 141,106               7,436                  

Williams, Milton 92,042                 7,622                  

Williams, Stephen 95,164                 1,021                  

Wilson, Richard Bruce 95,191                 ‐                       

Witan, Andrzej 101,040               217                      

Witkowski, Elizabeth 96,238                 ‐                       

Wong, Sabrina  101,269               2,231                  

Yaseri, Mahak 107,279               ‐                       

Yasinski, Daniel 95,136                 ‐                       

Yip, Karen 95,239                 ‐                       

Zhu, Allen 95,964                 37                         
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Name Remuneration Expenses

Remuneration greater than or equal to $75,000 28,118,890$       638,490$           

Remuneration less than $75,000 32,906,620         519,182              

Total remuneration 61,025,510$       1,157,672$        

Employer's Portion of CPP 2,293,820          

Employer's Portion of EI 913,211              

Total Employer's Portion 3,207,031$        
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Capilano University

Statement of Financial Information

For the Year Ended March 31, 2020

Supplier Name Amount

1103817 B.C. Ltd. 25,123$              

3RA Entertainment 53,831                

4imprint 35,715                

673862 NB Ltd. 26,803                

9397108 Canada Inc. (Cyber.SC) 38,588                

A & L Electronics 31,816                

AACRAO EDGE 34,707                

Academica Group Inc. 65,993                

Accountemps 200,727              

agile42 Consulting Ltd. 29,721                

Alfred Horie Construction Co. 364,292              

Amazon Marketplace CA 109,430              

Amery Mold 39,136                

Anixter Canada Inc. 58,945                

Annex Consulting Group Inc 103,750              

Annex Pro 47,622                

Apple Online Store 653,653              

Arts Umbrella 25,700                

ASSA ABLOY Entrance Systems 38,485                

Associated Engineering Ltd. 54,653                

Atlassian Corporation 26,244                

AVI‐SPL Canada Ltd. 32,127                

B & H Foto & Electronics Corp 31,487                

Bartle & Gibson Co. Ltd. 34,039                

Bartlett Tree Experts 55,008                

BC Hydro & Power Authority 394,037              

BCNet 789,087              

Best Buy Canada 29,206                

Best Service Pros Ltd. 1,507,973          

British Columbia Institute of Technology 40,165                

Brooks Corning 169,281              

C. F. Ventures Building Services Inc. 56,322                

Canada Post Corporation 35,436                

Canadian Centre for Diversity and Inclusion 39,006                

Canadian Edge International Corporation 29,205                

Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services

Page 41

Sch 9.2

Page 168 of 178 
BoG Agenda Package



Supplier Name Amount

Canadian Office Professional Employees 262,799              

Canadian Turner Construction Ltd. 3,384,833          

Canam Consultants Ltd. 65,095                

Capex Project Advisory Services Inc. 61,803                

Capilano Students' Union 4,124,609          

Capilano University Faculty Association 677,444              

Carter Hales Design Lab 30,050                

CDW Canada Inc. 148,505              

Chernoff Thompson Architects 45,564                

Cisco Systems Capital Canada Ltd. 79,360                

Clark Wilson LLP 493,113              

Clifford, Mark 58,821                

Coast Climate Control 67,156                

College Pension Plan 4,197,844          

Colleges and Institutes Canada 35,648                

Colorific Digital Printing Solutions 25,882                

Compass Group Canada 1,805,847          

Compugen Inc. 371,447              

Constant Contact 28,813                

Corporate Express Canada 320,338              

Council of Prairie and Pacific University Libraries 31,790                

Darwin Group of Companies 730,932              

DataCore Mail Management 48,141                

DBBC Worldover Edutravel Pvt. Ltd. 56,290                

DCS Consulting 47,315                

Dell Computer Corporation 1,369,909          

Deloitte Management Services LP 129,360              

Design Roofing & Sheet Metal Ltd. 30,267                

DFM Mechanical 62,019                

Dialog Design 108,416              

District of North Vancouver 348,438              

Dooley, David 26,793                

EAB Global Inc. 243,590              

EBSCO Canada Ltd. 85,985                

Eduwings Global Career Consultants LLP 40,826                

Edwise International LLP 25,758                

Electronic Health Library of BC 39,365                

Elemental Architecture & Interiors Inc. 43,271                

Elite Fire Protection Ltd. 173,723              

Ellucian Technologies Canada ULC 175,015              

Encore Business Solutions 26,328                

EnviroSafety Confined Space Safety Equipment 36,719                

ESC Automation Inc. 221,994              
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Supplier Name Amount

Experience Point 28,250                

eXplorance Inc. 39,187                

Facebook Advertising Services 77,031                

Fairmont Pacific Rim 29,215                

Forme Ergonomics & Workplace Health 29,316                

Fortis BC 80,206                

Frequency Foundry 31,500                

Fulcrum Management Solutions Ltd. 25,402                

FWD Engineering Ltd. 153,638              

GeeBee Education Pvt. Ltd. 97,798                

Georgia Street Media Inc. 47,508                

GFL Environmental Inc. 47,699                

Glenmore Custom Print + Packaging 33,811                

Global Strategic Communications 66,150                

Globus Overseas Consulting Private Limited 51,276                

Google Inc. 34,183                

Govan Brown & Associates Ltd. 102,328              

Grand & Toy Limited 69,914                

Great‐West Life Assurance 2,713,266          

Habitat Systems Incorporated 27,339                

Harbourview Electric Ltd. 64,733                

Harvey McKinnon Associates 47,007                

HDR Architecture Associates, Inc. 336,388              

Hearn, Karen 42,302                

Hemlock Printers Ltd. 101,263              

Heritage Office Furnishings Ltd. 221,938              

Hodgins, Barbara Denise 37,881                

Holmes & Brakel (B.C.) Inc. 181,504              

Homewood Health Inc. 41,765                

Horizon Engineering Inc. 33,623                

IBI Group Inc. 26,250                

ICEF GmbH 25,983                

IDP Education Ltd. 265,126              

Immigrant Services Society of BC 41,728                

Index Construction Inc. 680,300              

Indigenext Accelerator 98,990                

Infosilem Inc. 38,985                

Initial Printing Inc. 27,310                

Innovative Interfaces Global Limited 56,380                

Innovative Signage Inc. 50,710                

Insurance Corporation of BC 35,976                

Integral Group Inc. 93,072                

Inverter Technologies Ltd. 29,531                
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Supplier Name Amount

Ion United Inc. 37,938                

Ip, Joyce 171,666              

John Wiley & Sons Canada, Ltd. 48,190                

Johnstone's Insurance Services 89,278                

Jonathan Morgan & Company Limited 30,695                

Justice Institute of BC 41,192                

Kahunaerse Sports Group 139,241              

Kanopy LLC 32,000                

Kerrisdale Cameras Ltd. 34,721                

Keystone Environmental Ltd. 55,531                

Kinetic OHS Services Ltd. 45,222                

KONE Inc. 62,424                

KPMG LLP 53,550                

Krishna Consultants 34,577                

Kwela Leadership & Talent Management 45,668                

Lamar Companies, The 133,687              

Larigakis Architecture 27,736                

Leaders International Executive Search 100,676              

Lee, Hae Seul 39,980                

Lifestyle Equipment (2002) Ltd. 87,163                

Lime Painting Ltd. 179,445              

Little Star Industries, Ltd. 78,540                

Login Brothers Canada 60,152                

Long & McQuade 33,438                

Long View Systems Corporation 905,155              

Lorne Lapham Sales & Rentals Inc. 186,053              

M Square Business Solutions Inc. 1,840,867          

Macmillan Publishing Solutions 45,550                

Magil Construction Pacific Inc. 31,422                

Manulife Financial Corporation 1,574,828          

Matrix Video Communication 321,666              

MBS Wholesale Textbooks Inc. 121,742              

McGraw‐Hill Ryerson Ltd. 241,323              

MediaValet Inc. 41,364                

Medical Services Plan of BC 370,523              

Megamind Consultants Private Ltd. 52,710                

Metro Testing & Engineering Ltd. 47,513                

Microserve 359,649              

Middleware 360 Solutions Inc. 303,492              

Minister of Finance, Climate Action Secreteriat 39,296                

Mitchell Press Limited 66,958                

MNP LLP 55,125                

Municipal Pension Plan 1,324,664          
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Supplier Name Amount

MVCC Video Communications Corporation 592,853              

NaturalPoint, Inc. 101,673              

Nebraska Book Company Inc. 69,018                

Nelson Education 133,405              

NetPersist Solutions Group 30,135                

North Shore News 40,044                

Novus Technical Services Ltd. 96,087                

N'Quatqua First Nation 71,704                

Olympic International Ltd. 69,899                

OOKPIK Services Inc. 35,935                

Opportunity Traders Inc. 35,276                

Oxford University Press 64,206                

Pacific Powertech Inc. 67,605                

Paladin Security Group Ltd. 640,298              

Paladin Technologies Inc. 206,366              

Pattison Outdoor Advertising 150,418              

Peak Technologies 32,316                

Pearson Education Canada 236,237              

Phillips, Hager & North Investment Funds Ltd. 88,750                

Pinton Forrest & Madden Group Inc. 50,757                

Plaid Consulting Inc. 74,471                

Power West Industries Ltd. 32,419                

Powerland Computers Ltd. 172,634              

Prism Engineering Ltd. 30,198                

PrismRBS 27,528                

ProQuest LLC 100,844              

Pyramid E‐Services 99,159                

Quantum Lighting Inc. 104,807              

Quest University Canada 27,720                

Quietly Media Inc. 77,595                

Raffles Educity (I) Pvt Ltd. 42,246                

Ray Contracting Ltd. 37,170                

Receiver General for Canada 3,207,031          

Ricoh Canada Inc. 138,530              

RM Razor Manufacturing Ltd. 41,194                

Robert Half International Inc. 45,299                

Roper Greyell LLP 66,225                

Sasco Contractors Ltd. 55,739                

Sea to Sky Community Services Society 85,468                

Sechelt Indian Band 54,329                

Second Generation Landscapes 26,689                

Sehdev Travel and Eductaional Services 98,420                

SES Consulting Inc. 108,940              
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Supplier Name Amount

Ses Siyam Holdings Ltd. 43,650                

Shell Energy North America (Canada) Inc. 104,954              

Short Edition Inc. 32,031                

Simon Fraser University 255,357              

Simply Computing Inc. 30,193                

SoftChoice LP 330,453              

Softlanding Solutions Inc. 227,706              

SolarWinds Corporation 32,365                

Spark Computer Graphics Society 40,760                

Spicers Canada Ulc 32,251                

Spirit Works Limited 32,201                

Squamish Nation 57,068                

Squamish Volunteer Centre Society 78,008                

Stantec Consulting Ltd. 195,027              

StarRez Inc. 29,650                

Status Electrical Corporation 118,979              

Stepwest Experience Providers Inc. 79,275                

Sterling Fence Co. Ltd. 46,776                

Sunrise Immigration Consultants Pvt Ltd. 60,012                

Sunshine Coast Community Services Society 43,511                

Tableau Software Inc. 39,645                

Talentfit 147,137              

TargetX LLC 100,029              

TELUS Communications Inc. 146,339              

Terminalfour Solutions Ltd. 32,131                

The Peake of Catering Ltd. 43,729                

The Shipyards Development Ltd. 200,157              

Thomson Reuters Canada 78,774                

Tolin Contracting Inc. 85,901                

Total Energy Systems Ltd. 446,534              

Translink 2,536,430          

Travel Healthcare Insurance Solutions Inc. 213,995              

Ts'zil Learning Centre 39,056                

Turner, Chris 35,503                

Uline Canada Corporation 32,090                

UME Academy 25,813                

Unilogik Systems Inc. 88,620                

United Way of Lower Mainland 30,701                

University of Hertfordshire 135,503              

University of the Fraser Valley 59,050                

UPS Canada 33,923                

Urban Arts Architecture 72,190                

Valery Black Draperies Ltd. 64,327                
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Supplier Name Amount

Vancouver Fire & Radius Security Ltd. 139,689              

Vancouver Musicians' Association 25,124                

Wang, Audrey 26,975                

Watermark Catering 25,487                

Wenger Corporation 25,345                

West Coast Building Restoration Inc. 76,961                

Westech Systems Inc. 26,942                

WestPark Parking Services (2015) Inc. 208,422              

Wong, Monique 91,271                

WorkSafe BC 140,313              

WSP Canada Group Ltd. 93,238                

Xerox Canada Ltd. 66,370                

Yellow Pencil Inc. 114,850              

Vendor payments greater than $25,000 56,837,328$      

Vendor payments less than $25,000 7,866,125          

Total Vendor Payments 64,703,453$      
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Capilano University

Statement of Financial Information

For the Year Ended March 31, 2020

Reconciliation to Financial Statements

Employees' Remuneration 61,025,510$   

Employees' Expenses  1,157,672           

Payments to Vendors 64,703,453         

126,886,635       

Adjustments:

Flow through payments (not recorded as expenses) (6,908,618)          

Accruals, tax and other reconciling items (294,308)             

Capital Purchases (10,259,320)       

Amortization of Capital Assets 7,892,793           

117,317,182       

Change in prepaid expenses (1,477,680)          

Change in allowance for doubtful accounts 217,231              

Change in employee future benefits 91,700                 

Change in inventories 55,740                 

Change in accrued liabilities 5,161,386           

Total expenses per audited financial statements      121,365,559$    
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 9.3:  CAPITAL PROJECTS, CENTRE FOR CHILDHOOD STUDIES 

PURPOSE:   Approval 
 Information 
 Discussion 

MEETING DATE:  September 29, 2020 

PRESENTER:  Patricia Heintzman, Finance and Audit Committee Chair 

MOTION 
The following motion is proposed for the Board of Governors: 

THAT the Board of Governors approve the construction of the Centre for Childhood Studies. 

BACKGROUND 

To meet current demand for childcare and to support academic programming, the University proposes 
to construct a new 25,000 sq. ft. building on the existing Facilities building site of the North Vancouver 
campus. The new facility will provide 74 additional childcare spaces; laboratories, classrooms, faculty 
office space for the Early Childhood Care and Education (ECCE) program, meeting space, and student 
study space. Facilities Services will be relocated elsewhere on campus in underutilized space (in a 
location yet to be determined). 

In February 2020, the Board of Governors provided approval in principle for the construction of the 
Centre for Childhood Studies. With this approval, planning of the project advanced with the 
procurement of Project Management Services and Architectural Services. In June 2020, the Board of 
Governors approved the University’s Five-Year Capital Plan that included the Centre for Childhood 
Studies project.  

According to February 2020 Class ‘D’ estimates, the project will cost approximately $16 million. Class ‘D’ 
estimates are plus or minus 25% to 30% based upon initial project requirements (e.g. amount of space 
required per child), current planning assumptions, and current construction rates. 

In March 2020, the University was granted $2.96 million by the Ministry of Children & Family 
Development from the Childcare BC New Spaces Fund to put towards the project. The remaining $13.04 
million will be paid for by the University’s cash reserves. Other sources of funding are being explored to 
recoup a portion of the $13.04 million such as fundraising and a contribution from the Ministry of 
Advanced Education, Skills and Training (AEST). 

At the September 25, 2020 meeting, the Finance and Audit Committee received background on the 
planning and construction of the new building.  The Committee passed a motion to recommend that the 
Board of Governors approve the construction of the Centre for Childhood Studies building 

CURRENT STATUS 

The project is in the design phase with the functional program being developed to define the 
requirements of the childcare center and those of ECCE faculty. 
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PROJECT SCHEDULE 

 Board approval in principle  February 25, 2020 
 Ministry funding approval  March 2020 
 Design start    Spring 2020 
 Board formal approval   September 2020 
 Decision on funding raising campaign Fall 2020 
 Construction start    Spring 2021 
 Building opening    Summer 2023 

 
PROJECT BUDGET 

 

CAPILANO UNIVERSITY

CHILDREN'S CENTRE PROJECT CAPITAL SUMMARY

Timeline:

Pre-Planning, funding approval Feb-April 2020

Design May 1, 2020-Feb 28, 2021

Tender/Award March - April 2021

Construction May 2021 - April 2023

Open May 2023 (Fiscal 2023/24)

CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE SUMMARY
 CHILDCARE 

(893m2) 

 SCHOOL 

(1,047m2) 

 TOTAL       

(2,300m2) 

A - Hard Cost (Construction Cost)

Building 2,759,400         4,495,500     7,254,900              

Site Development and Services 361,400             348,600        710,000                 

Building Demolition/Hazmat -                      272,500        272,500                 

Construction - Excluding G/R & Fee 3,120,800         5,116,600    8,237,400             

General Requirements 8.0% 249,700             409,300        659,000                 

Fee 3.0% 101,100             165,800        266,900                 

Construction - Excluding Allowances 3,471,600         5,691,700    9,163,300             

Design and Pricing Allowance 15.0% 520,700             853,800        1,374,500              

Escalation Allowance (May 2021) 6.0% 239,500             392,700        632,200                 

Construction Allowance 0.0% -                      -                 -                          

Construction Cost - Excluding GST 4,231,800         6,938,200    11,170,000           

B - Soft Cost (Owner's Cost Item)

Design Fees 12.0% 507,800             832,600        1,340,400              

LEED and BC Energy Code Step 4 design compliance 2.0% 84,600               138,800        223,400                 

Post Contract Contingency (Construction Contingency) 5.0% 211,600             346,900        558,500                 

Municipal Fees 2.0% 84,600               138,800        223,400                 

Equipment (Appliances/Furniture) 3.5% 148,100             242,800        390,900                 

Project Management Fee 2.0% 84,600               138,800        223,400                 

Wrap-up Liability Insurance 0.1% 4,200                  6,900             11,100                   

Payable Taxes (GST) 5.0% 211,600             346,900        558,500                 

Relocation of existing Facilities Team -                      175,000        175,000                 

Soft Costs - Excluding Capital Budget Reserve 1,337,100         2,367,500    3,704,600             

C - Capital Budget Reserve (Identified Supplemental Item)

C.1 - Identified Supplemental Item

Supplementary Building 2.0% 84,600               138,800        223,400                 

Supplementary Site 0.5% 21,200               34,700           55,900                   

Offsite Services 3.0% 127,000             208,100        335,100                 

Capital Budget Reserve - Identified Supplemental Item 232,800             381,600        614,400                 

C.2 - Identified Riks Item

Soil and Ground Condition 2.0% 84,600               138,800        223,400                 

Unknown Hazard Abatement 1.5% 63,500               104,100        167,600                 

Unknown Site Condition 0.5% 21,200               34,700           55,900                   

Unexpected City Requirements 25,000               39,100           64,100                   

Capital Budget Reserve - Identified Risk Item 194,300             316,700        511,000                 

CAPITAL PROJECT BUDGET 5,996,000         10,004,000  16,000,000           

PROJECT FUNDING SOURCES

Childcare BC New Spaces Funding Program 2,960,000              

Capilano University 13,040,000           
TOTAL 16,000,000           

annual impact cumulative

Revenue

Amortization of deferred capital contributions 67,833               74,000               2,886,000     6,167                      2,960,000     

Expenses

Asset Amortization (366,667)            (400,000)            (15,600,000) (33,333)                  (16,000,000) 
Surplus / (Deficit) (298,833)            (326,000)            (12,714,000) (27,166)                  (13,040,000) 

Years 2-39

Fiscal 2024/25 to 2062/63

OPERATING IMPACT OF BUILDING Opening Year

Fiscal 2023-24

Final Year

Fiscal 2063/64

Total
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 10:  Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) Update 

PURPOSE:    Approval  
X    Information 

  Discussion 

MEETING DATE:  September 29,  2020 

PRESENTER:  Toran Savjord, VP Strategic Planning, Assessment & Institutional Effectiveness 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The Accreditation Team has submitted the Year-7 Report to the NWCCU and 
is planning the on-site visit (19-21st October 2020). 

PURPOSE 
To share information about the NWCCU Year 7 Accreditation report and site visit. 

BACKGROUND 
Capilano University is in its seventh year of its NWCCU accreditation which means that this year we are 
required to complete a significant Year-7 evaluation and report and host an in-person Peer Evaluation 
Committee site visit. The report was submitted in early August and the site visit by the NWCCU Peer 
Evaluation Committee is scheduled for October 19-21, 2020. The site visit will be conducted online 
through Zoom due to the impacts of COVID-19. 

The NWCCU Peer Evaluation Committee is confirmed, as follows: 

 Dr. Susan Kalina, Vice Provost for Academic Affairs, University of Alaska Anchorage (Chair of the
CapU NWCCU Evaluation Committee)

 Dr. Bernadette Jungblut, Associate Provost for Accreditation, Academic Planning, and
Assessment, Central Washington University

 Dr. Laura Behling, Provost, University of Puget Sound

 Dr. Janine Allen, Associate Provost of Global Engagement, Corban University

 Dr. Marc Geisler, Associate Dean, College of Humanities & Social Sciences, Western Washington
University

 Brian Johnson, Assistant Vice President, Facilities, University of Idaho

 Dr. Pamela Goad, Executive Vice President, Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities

The CapU Accreditation Team recently met with Dr. Susan Kalina, Chair of the Evaluation Committee, to 
discuss the CapU meeting schedule for the NWCCU site visit. The site visit will include town halls with 
students, faculty and staff, as well as individual and small group meetings with representatives from the 
Board, Senate, the Executive, and academic and operational departments.  

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Board of Governors accept as information this report from the NWCCU Accreditation Team. 

Sch 10
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